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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS
(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BEIREN PRINTING
MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(established in the People's Republic of China)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 53 to 95 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on
our audit, on those statements and to report our opinion to you.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Company and of the Group, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2001 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for
the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

17 April 2002, Hong Kong

WO



(RERDREHEAFR)
HE=SE—F1=A=1—AILFE

eS|
HERA

ER

H AU A

HEER

EEEA
EEET{ERE

= 8
BF - MEENRE
ZEEBX
HEIRZBERA

ERAE
MHER
BoBENRRE

Bt A1 & A

Bi1E

BERF
DR R E S

RERF

2001 ANNUAL

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

Kzt

NOTES

Turnover 4
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue 6

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Derecognition of deferred staff
accomodation

Impairment losses in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Impairment losses in respect of
construction in progress

Profit from operations 7
Finance costs 8
Share of results of associates

Profit before taxation
Taxation 11

Profit after taxation
Minority interests

Net profit for the year

Earnings per share - Basic 13

REPORT

For the year ended 31 December 2001

—ZET—F
AR#TT
2001
Rmb'000

699,947
(487,155)

212,792
5,419

(31,196)

(97,954)

(31,690)

(8,093)

49,278
(8,159)
.

41,126
(13,738)

27,388
1,025

28,413

AR#7.19
Rmb 7.1 fen

—EEEF
AR®FT
2000
Rmb'000
(E#)
(Restated)

444,984
(289,702)

155,282
4,599

(24,599)

(73,218)

(41,503)

20,561
(2,515)

18,046
(8,647)

9,399
2,004

11,403

AR¥2.9%
Rmb 2.9 fen

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

At 31 December 2001

(REBARGEAER)
—EEFt-A=1+—HEE

—EET—F —ETEF
Kt et AR®FIT AR¥FT
2001 2000
NOTES Rmb'000 Rmb'000
(E )
(Restated)
FRBEE Non-current Assets
BT ERARE Property, plant and equipment 14 492,153 492,748
EEIR Construction in progress 15 128,786 48,079
BREE Intangible assets 16 2,812 4,227
B N Rl Interests in associates 18 10,687 =
Hith&EE Other assets 20 32,727 32,847
667,165 577,901
RERE Current Assets
FE Inventories 21 485,311 480,019
BWRERR Accounts receivable,
AR R E A prepayments and other
i receivables 22 162,532 115,013
ROTTFRRES Bank balances and cash 23 218,066 127,420
865,909 722,452
mE AR Current Liabilities
FEAT IR TR Accounts payable 24 102,827 73,626
H A BT Other payables 25 46,109 47,932
NP ES Amount due to
b2y N ultimate holding company 75,473 126,754
BAMBATDE Amounts due to minority
BER shareholders of subsidiaries 26 2,673 6,213
FAWBEEER Sales deposits received 32,234 30,013
HIHAEE Provision for taxes and levies 27 23,252 4,477
RSN Option payments received 28 24,209 24,209
ER—— FREH Borrowings - due within one year 29 264,050 21,000
570,827 334,224
mEDFERE Net Current Assets 295,082 388,228
962,247 966,129
B F R & iE Capital and Reserves
[N Share capital 30 400,000 400,000
f# % Reserves 31 530,195 541,782
930,195 941,782
Minority Interests 30,352 24,347
ERBAER Non-current Liabilities
B ——FHEH Borrowings - due after one year 29 1,700 -
962,247 966,129

ER+ZEEZEFNTHEMRBZUBRRE
R-ZB-FNA+LAKESEMAERR
RRIT WHTHESARREZSEE .

The financial statements on pages 53 to 95 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 April 2002 and

are signed on its behalf by:

2@%

T E%¥ WANG GUOHUA
Z % DIRECTOR

BERZR LU CHANGAN
ZEZE DIRECTOR
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Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Construction in progress
Investments in subsidiaries
Interests in associates
Other assets

Current Assets

Inventories

Accounts receivable,
prepayments and other
receivables

Amounts receivable from
subsidiaries

Bank balances and cash

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Other payables
Amount due to ultimate

holding company

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Sales deposits received
Provision for taxes and levies
Option payments received
Short term borrowings

Net Current Assets

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves

BERZ LU CHANGAN
&% DIRECTOR

REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BALANCE SHEET

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

Mt et

NOTES

14
15
17
18
20

21

22

23

24
25

27
28
29

30
31

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED

—EE—%
ARBTFIT
2001
Rmb'000

395,578
120,940
69,957
12,373
32,727

631,575
387,083

131,005

56,717
195,614

770,419
66,878
26,723
75,599

21,337
23,118
24,209
220,000
457,864
312,555

944,130

400,000
544,130

944,130

2@%

E B % WANG GUOHUA

Z % DIRECTOR

e
ARHEF T
2000
Rmb'000

(E )
(Restated)

427,068
47,729
52,232

32,847

559,876

409,415

95,505

62,161
115,740

682,821
58,569
33,536
126,754
6,578
30,013
3,190
24,209
5,000
287,849

394,972

954,848

400,000
554,848

954,848
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

(REBARGEAER)

BE_ZEFE—Ff+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2001

—EE— —ggEs
AR%TiT ARMFT
2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
EEAZBESET Total recognised gains and
RERFEER losses, representing net profit
for the year 28,413 11,403
LUTIEE S| 22 H8% ©  Prior year adjustment arising from:
——EETF+-H — derecognition of liability for
=t—HLFE final dividend proposed for the
SIRAREAIRE 2 & B year ended 31 December 2000 40,000 —
——hAANE+=A — derecognition of liability for
=t+t—HLEE final dividend proposed for the
BEIRAREIRE 2 & B year ended 31 December 1999 — 22,000
—EEE TXEE A — derecognition of deferred staff
accomodation (41,503) —
—HMHEEEETERE — reversal of amortisation of
FA [ £ deferred staff accomodation 2,075 =
572 22,000
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

—EE—f —ETTE
HaE AR®TTT AR®FT
2001 2000
NOTES Rmb'000 Rmb'000
NET CASH INFLOW FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 33(a) 127,402 44,742
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS
AND SERVICING OF FINANCE
Dividends paid (40,000) (22,000)
Interest paid (8,159) (2,515)
Interest received 2,150 4,504
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS
AND SERVICING
OF FINANCE (46,009) (20,011)
TAXATION
Income tax paid (12,018) (12,085)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to construction
in progress (117,443) (38,389)
Purchase of property,
plant and equipment (53,669) (8,055)
Investment in an associate (10,680) -
Decrease in bank deposits
with maturity over
three months 20,893 27,883
Proceeds on disposal of
property, plant and equipment 2,444 4,025
Proceeds on disposal of
other assets 120 120
Acquisition of a business 33(b) — (50,251)

Expenditure on intangible
assets acquired — (2,747)

AWK 5 RN

BRREDS

1Bz

B &k

2001

ANNUAL

Option payments received

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

REPORT

(158,335)

1,061

(66,353)

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(EEBARETEARR)
HE-FFT—F1T-H=1—HILFE

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

—ET—F —E2EEF
HtaE ARETIT AR F
2001 2000
NOTES Rmb'000 Rmb’'000
KEtRE A NET CASH OUTFLOW
Rnem BEFORE FINANCING (88,960) (53,707)
L FINANCING ACTIVITIES 33(b)
& FRIZ h0 New borrowings raised 244,750 5,220
Y ERNETRA 2 Contributions from minority
EHERFEE shareholders of a subsidiary 7,030 -
BRTRE Repayment to ultimate
ERAF holding company (51,281) =
MEEBSIR NET CASH INFLOW
ZHRERTA FROM FINANCING 200,499 5,220
HeRA&H NET INCREASE (DECREASE)
E¥-m IN CASH AND CASH
(D) EQUIVALENTS 111,539 (48,487)
HeRASEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
E—R—HZ&ER AT 1 JANUARY 85,303 133,790
BReRBaEEY CASH AND CASH
#Z#+—-_HA=+—H EQUIVALENTS
Z e AT 31 DECEMBER 33(c) 196,842 85,303
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ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

1. GENERAL

Beiren Printing Machinery Holdings Limited (the "Company")
was established in Beijing, the People's Republic of China
(the "PRC") on 13 July 1993 as a joint stock limited company
in accordance with the provisions set out in the Standard
Opinion on Joint Stock Limited Companies issued as of 15
May 1992 by the State Commission for Restructuring the
Economic System of the PRC. The Company is registered
as an overseas company in Hong Kong under Part XI of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The H Shares and A
Shares of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and the Shanghai Stock Exchange of
the PRC respectively.

The Company is mainly engaged in the manufacture and
sales of a variety of printing machines and related spare
parts.

The ultimate holding company is Beiren Group Corporation
("BGC"), a state-owned company incorporated in the PRC.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current year, the Group has adopted for the first time
a number of new and revised Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice ("SSAP") issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants. Adoption of these new and revised
SSAPs has led to a number of changes in the Group's
accounting policies. The revised accounting policies are set
out in note 3. In addition, the new and revised SSAPs have
introduced additional and revised disclosure requirements
which have been adopted in these financial statements.
Comparative amounts for the prior year have been restated
in order to achieve a consistent presentation.

The adoption of these new and revised SSAPs has resulted
in the following changes to the Group's accounting policies
that have affected the amounts reported for the current or
prior periods.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (continued)

(a)

(b)

Dividends proposed or declared after the
balance sheet date

In accordance with SSAP 9 (Revised) "Events after
the Balance Sheet Date", dividends proposed or
declared after the balance sheet date are not
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date,
but are disclosed as a separate component of equity
in the notes to the financial statements. This change
in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively,
resulting in a prior year adjustment which increases
the equity at 1 January 2000 and 1 January 2001 by
Rmb22,000,000 and Rmb40,000,000 respectively.

Intangible assets

SSAP 29 “Intangible Assets” specifies more rigorous
criteria for the recognition of intangible assets than
were applied in previous periods. Consequently,
adoption of SSAP 29 has resulted in the derecognition
of deferred staff accommodation, which represents
the difference between the cost of quarters incurred
by the Group and proceeds from sale of quarters to
employees at preferential prices in accordance with
the State’s housing reform policy and local PRC
government regulations which was reported as
intangible assets in prior financial statements. This
change in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively, resulting in prior period adjustments
which decrease both the net profit for the year ended
31 December 2000 and the equity at 1 January 2001
of the Group and the Company by Rmb39,428,000.
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REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (continued)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 30
"Business Combinations" and has elected not to
restate negative goodwill previously credited to
reserves. No goodwill had arisen prior to 1 January
2001.

For goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1 January
2001, the adoption of SSAP 30 requires the
capitalisation of goodwill arising on acquisitions. Such
goodwill will be amortised over its estimated useful
life. Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1
January 2001 is presented as a deduction from assets
and will be released to income based on an analysis
of the circumstances from which the balance resulted.
The adoption of SSAP 30 has not had any effect on
the results for the current or prior periods.

Impairment of assets

SSAP 31 "Impairment of Assets" has introduced a
formal framework for the recognition of impairment
losses in respect of the Group's assets. Although in
prior years the Group complied with the requirements
of specific SSAPs in respect of impairment losses,
the introduction of SSAP 31 has required a re-
estimation of the recoverable amount of certain
assets, resulting in the identification of additional
impairment losses at 31 December 2001 in respect
of property, plant and equipment and construction in
progress amounting to Rmb31,690,000 and
Rmb8,093,000 respectively. These additional
impairment losses have been recognised in full in the
current year.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED

61



62

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(RBFBLREHEAER)
SEE-FHoASt-AUFE

&,

FEETHE

B RS R AR P EE R T 1R B S R A
EREREBARETERRE - FF
RAFESABENT -

= £ R AR B 5

REREFEAAARAENBARE
EBFT-A=1T-HILZWER
% o

HAFEBARNEHZHBLR - Al
HEBABHRIZHERR L 2%
BBV AGEEERA °

BEDEEBA-MNBARARBE L
AlfF - BEAESRAKE A ATH
HEERREFREZAIABEZE
B o

—EE-F-R-HZRRAWEME
ENEBERBRENML  WRERER
HuEREETH#E - ARiBEE
AMELENHEREEERE QRN
WREES - BWIBHEB AR mELN
BEREEERERTHEABIEE
I LA IR R o

REEMBLRRBE QTR - X
BE, LA ERETRENEES
FRAHEZBNRERES -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal
accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
or associate at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1 January 2001 is
capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over its
useful economic life. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate is included within the carrying amount of the
associate. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
is presented separately in the balance sheet as a separate
intangible asset.

On disposal of a subsidiary or associate, the attributable
amount of unamortised goodwill/goodwill previously
eliminated against reserves is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal.
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ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group's
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of a subsidiary or associate at the date of
acquisition over the cost of acquisition.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January
2001 continues to be held in reserves and will be credited
to income at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary
or associate.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1 January
2001 is presented as deduction from assets and will be
released to income based on an analysis of the
circumstances from which the balance resulted.

To the extent that the negative goodwill is attributable to
losses or expenses anticipated at the date of acquisition, it
is released to income in the period in which those losses or
expenses arise. The remaining negative goodwill is
recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the
remaining average useful life of the identifiable acquired
depreciable assets. To the extent that such negative goodwill
exceeds the aggregate fair value of the acquired identifiable
non-monetary assets, it is recognised in income immediately.

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate
is deducted from the carrying value of that associate.
Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
is presented separately in the balance sheet as a deduction
from assets.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company's
balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group's
share of the post-acquisition results of its associates for the
year. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in
associates are stated at the Group's share of the net assets
of the associates less any identified impairment loss.

The results of associates are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable during
the year. In the Company's balance sheet, investments in
associates are stated at cost, as reduced by any identified
impairment loss.
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(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum:

BREHFH

Over the term of the leases
RENFHERN+F2BREE

Over the shorter of the term of the leases and 40 years
RENFHERIT+F2REE

Over the shorter of the term of the leases and 50 years

7.14% - 10%

12.5% - 20%

12.5% - 20%

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the income statement.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress, which includes all development
expenditure and other direct costs, including interest
expenses attributable to such projects, is stated at cost.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as property,
plant and equipment, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use. Costs on completed construction
works are transferred to property, plant and equipment or
the relevant projects.

Technical knowhow

Technical knowhow, which is based on professional
appraisals of knowhow contributed in accordance with the
terms of the joint venture contracts or cost incurred in its
acquisition, is stated at cost and amortised over its estimated
useful life of ten years on a straight-line basis.
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(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined
project will be recovered through future commercial activity.
The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over
its useful life.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other assets

Other assets are stated at cost less any identified impairment
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An Impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

g}

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders' rights to receive payment have been
established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

Leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments in respect of statutory retirement funds are
charged as an expense as they fall due.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Renminbi are
translated at the rates ruling on the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies
other than Renminbi are re-translated at the rates ruling on
the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on
exchange are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries which are denominated in currencies other than
Renminbi are translated at the rates ruling on the balance
sheet date. All translation differences arising on
consolidation are dealt with in reserves.

Taxation

Income taxes are provided for in accordance with tax
regulations of the PRC and the provisions of the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Ordinance applicable to the Group.

Timing differences arise from the recognition for tax purposes
of certain items of income and expense in a different
accounting period from that in which they are recognised in
the financial statements. The tax effect of timing differences,
computed under the liability method, is recognised as
deferred taxation in the financial statements to the extent
that it is probable that a liability or asset will crystallise in
the foreseeable future.
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—EF-F+oASt—ALEE
4,

BEXRE 4.

EXBEERBRIKZHE - EHHHE
€ EMREHERRERE ZHES
B AEBETEXEB 2 EEBE LMW
T :

For the year ended 31 December 2001

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the net sales value of printing machines,
spare parts, raw materials and services from other
operations. The Group's turnover analysed by principal
activities is as follows:

EXE
Turnover

—22-£ —ZEEE
ARETFIT ARETFT
2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
ERpIg RS E Manufacture and sales of printing machines 690,569 420,807
B REEEE Manufacture and sales of spare parts 9,377 9,980
FEMHEBER L% Trading of raw materials and other operations 4,874 17,220
HEAE Total sales 704,820 448,007
A SHERREMBE Less: Sales tax and other surcharges (4,873) (3,023)
699,947 444,984

RKERBESH 5 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

FEBFEZWARFETRAESR
B AR ENRIMEGEREE - REE
EBRRERIZBAREEER
MA Bt BEZHREBHED
fii

Hfhlig A 6.
HRADHMT :

RITERAE Interest on bank deposits
R BB Exchange gain

=41/ N Others

As substantially all of the Group's revenue and results are
derived from the manufacture and sale of printing machines
in the Mainland China, and revenue and results derived from
other business segments and outside the Mainland China
are insignificant, no segmental analysis of financial
information is presented.

OTHER REVENUE

Other revenue is analysed as follows:

—$3-% i
ARBFR N
2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
2,150 4,504
1,061 —
2,208 95
5,419 4,599
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—FEf+-_HA=+—HIFEE For the year ended 31 December 2001
g2x0E 7. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
225
ARBTFT
2001
Rmb'000
EEFBEEMR Profit from operations has been arrived at after

(FtA) : charging (crediting):
mENSH Depreciation and amortisation

BT BEARE Property, plant and equipment 47,512

FEEF 4 51 Technical knowhow 457

HEER Development costs 461
NEREBEA Total depreciation and amortisation 48,430
HERTF  BEMRMEZEX  Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,261
REMHE Auditors' remuneration 2,041

B2 (EH) Allowance for (reversal of allowance for)

TR slow — moving inventories 1,670
RIRER Provision for bad and doubtful debts 1,729
IRRE2EE Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases in

BARRAS respect of factory facilities 1,038
MERFAEBEX Research and development expenses 10,809
EIZHEREEHE Staff costs including directors' emoluments 107,019
HERA 8.  FINANCE COSTS

—gT-%
ARETT
2001
Rmb'000
REFREEZBT Interest on bank borrowings wholly
ERAEXZE repayable within five years 8,159

.
AREFL
2000
Rmb'000
(E3t)
(Restated)

32,342
301
326

32,969
3,247
1,962

(6,933)
2,093

3,066
378

98,033

—zrEE
ARBFT
2000
Rmb'000

2,515
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(REFBELRSHELRER) (Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
—EE—F{ _H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2001
9. EERETEHME 9. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' EMOLUMENTS
EEREEMEOMAT ¢ The directors' and supervisors' emoluments are analysed
as follows:
k- L —ZEEE
AR¥TIT ARMF T
2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
e Fees:
HOTES Executive directors — —
BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors = —
EE Supervisors = =
Hind 2 - Other emoluments:
HOTES Executive directors
HFeREMFIR Salaries and other benefits 78 93
BNSFHEHEN Contributions to retirement plan 7 18
BRIERBRGA2RS Performance related bonus 66 =
BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors — =
EE Supervisors
EXRGEREMFIR Salaries and other benefits 37 90
BINSF BN Contributions to retirement plan 9 17
RIERBR GRS Performance related bonus 30 -
227 218
227 218
riEEREEMEEMNASUTA The emoluments of the above directors and supervisors fall
Bl within the following bands:
—es-% —z338
BAN BAH
2001 2000
28 BT (AR¥%R) Amount HK$ (Rmb) Number of persons Number of persons
0- 1,000,000 (0 - 1,060,600) 12 12
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(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

10. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of five highest paid individuals for the year
were as below. The five highest paid individuals for 2001
included one (2000: five) director, details of whose
emoluments are set out in note 9 above.

225 —ZETF
AR¥FT AREFT
2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
%ﬁé&ﬁf&ﬂ Salaries and other benefits 312 1,535
RINS BN Contributions to retirement plan 28 63
RIERBR GRS Performance related bonus 257 =
597 1,598
—E3-% “ZEER
BAR BAY
2001 2000
&% BET(AR¥I)  Amount HK$ (Rmb) Number of persons Number of persons
0- 1,000,000 (0 - 1,060,600) 5 5
RN 11. TAXATION
—E3-% “ZEER
AR¥FT AE®TR
2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
BEEHE ! The charge comprises:
AFEEREARLNE Provision of PRC income tax for the year 13,738 8,648
PR AE
HEEBRBAEHEMEDE  Overprovision of Hong Kong Profits Tax in prior year — (1)
13,738 8,647
RAT) ZHREIPTEH T LT E R The Company is subject to PRC income tax levied at a rate

Z15%(=BZZF 1 15%) BTt
o HMTF/‘?E’JFE SHEZBHE
BRAEHRFTE

ANNUAL REPORT

of 15% (2000:15%) of the taxable income. All subsidiaries
are subject to PRC income tax levied at a rate as specified
in accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in the
PRC.
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11.

12.

13.

(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

R\ (&) 11. TAXATION (continued)
EBRER > 0B DURFERG Hong Kong Profits Tax, if any, is calculated at 16% (2000:
STERBMENZ16% (ZEEEF ¢ 16%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
16%) LR H ©
REBEEMEIM T - BT E The Group does not incur any significant tax liability in any
AR ER - other jurisdiction.
REERARZBLEMESHEE 2 Details of the potential deferred tax assets not recognised
1B IR FE32 © for the year are set out in note 32.
FEEER 12. APPROPRIATIONS AND DIVIDENDS
—22-F “EETF
AR¥FT AR®TFRT
2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
REEEARES () Transfer to statutory surplus reserve (note) 2,508 1,099
BEGEE @S (HF) Transfer to statutory public welfare fund (note) 2,508 1,099
RKERERESR Amount set aside for proposed final dividend of
AR¥0127T (ZEZZE . Rmb0.12 (2000: Rmb0.10) per share
BRARHO0.107T) 48,000 40,000
53,016 42,198

EEERENKREREERARYE
0,12t (=ZZEZEF . AR%0.10
TU) c RARBLEBRRABRASE
EEA o

B -

REFEARENBEEEELERRE
EEAAEESFRIURPES L
WHIZFRE210% @ BIE AR
6,486,000 L (ZZEZEZF . AR¥
5,167,0007t) * 2 RIZZEELAEEFE
EQmE o BREEAREE » BPEE
B4R § 2 B FS 3Rk P E S F L AT HA AR
E, BYRNFEFARIEABZRD
Hit » RATEHE EFEIRINZETE
PEEREERAZEZARYE
3,978,000t (ZZEZEZF : AR¥
4,068,0007T) ° JHE ZIREEEED HRA
FEESBEPHR -

BERAEH

REESRENZTEETIRIBERE
EEF AK#28,413,0007% (=B
ZTE : AR®11,403,0007) It 74
B 217 2400,000,0000% (ZZEZ
£ : 400,000,0008%) 5t & o

13.

The final dividend of Rmb0.12 (2000:Rmb0.10) per share
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholds in general meeting.

Note:

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC, the Company appropriated Rmb6,486,000 (2000:
Rmb5,167,000), being 10% of the Company's net profit for the
year prepared under the PRC accounting standards, from the
net profit for the year to each of the statutory surplus reserve
and the statutory public welfare fund. However, certain prior
year adjustments had been made to reduce the retained profits
as reported in the financial statements prepared under the PRC
accounting standards. Accordingly, the Company is required
to reverse the previous years' appropriations of Rmb3,978,000
(2000: Rmb4,068,000) from each of the statutory surplus
reserve and the statutory public welfare fund. The amount of
the reversed appropriations has been deducted from the amount
of the current year's appropriation.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is
based on the net profit for the year of Rmb28,413,000 (2000:
Rmb11,403,000) and on the 400,000,000 shares (2000:
400,000,000 shares) in issue during the year.
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*5E THE GROUP
RE{E COST
R=Z2Z-%-A-H At 1 January 2001
BHAE Reclassification
wE Additions
REZIREA Transfer from construction
in progress
EE Disposals
R-ZZ-%#+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2001
AHE ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
R=ZZ-5-H-H At 1 January 2001
ENNE Reclassification
RERE Charge for the year
HE Impairment losses
B% recognised
REREH Eliminated on disposals
R-ZZ-%£+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2001
RERE NET BOOK VALUES
R-ZEZ-%+-B=t-H At 31 December 2001
REEEEE+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2000
NG THE COMPANY
BEE COST
R=ZZ-5-H-A At 1 January 2001
ENNE Reclassification
NE Additions
ftERIREA Transfer from construction
in progress
RE Disposals
RZEE-F+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2001
AEAE ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
R=Z22-%-8-H At 1 January 2001
BHAE Reclassification
TERE Charge for the year
HfE Impairment losses
BX (W) recognised (note)
REREHE Eliminated on disposals
RZEE-F+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2001
RERE NET BOOK VALUES

R-ZZ-%£+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2001

R-ZZEE£+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2000
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EEFEETER - WHRMBOEF - #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

THREF #a RAR A RE ait
ARBFT ARBFT ARBTFT ARBTFT ARBTFT
Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
348,026 370,332 51,905 23,407 793,670
— 3,003 (2,014) (989) —
2,961 46,939 1,951 1,818 53,669
5,366 21,763 739 775 28,643
(506) (11,338) (2,573) (1,383) (15,800)
355,847 430,699 50,008 23,628 860,182
78,159 187,330 24,816 10,617 300,922
- 610 (373) (237) —
7,871 31,156 5,502 2,983 47,512
- 31,690 — — 31,690
(49) (8,900) (2,114) (1,032) (12,095)
85,981 241,386 27,831 12,331 368,029
269,866 188,813 22,177 11,297 492,153
269,867 183,002 27,089 12,790 492,748
307,424 335,431 46,914 16,471 706,240
- 3,003 (1,908) (1,095) —
- 4,019 1,166 871 6,056
5,074 19,822 665 363 25,924
(157) (11,332) (2,573) (400) (14,462)
312,341 350,943 44,264 16,210 723,758
73,776 174,622 22,979 7,795 279,172
— 610 (286) (324) —
6,958 15,213 4,702 1,869 28,742
— 31,690 — — 31,690
(38) (8,898) (2,114) (374) (11,424)
80,696 213,237 25,281 8,966 328,180
231,645 137,706 18,983 7,244 395,578
233,648 160,809 23,935 8,676 427,068

Note: During the year, the Group reviewed the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and identified that certain of those
property, plant and equipment are either idle or have no
economic value to the Group. Accordingly, the carrying amounts
of those identified property, plant and equipment are reduced
to their respective recoverable amounts, which represent the
net selling prices of those property, plant and equipment. The
net selling prices were determined by reference to the market
of those property, plant and equipment in the PRC.
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14, #F  @ENSRE & 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
AEERADNTBZ L RIEF ZEE An analysis of the net book value of the Group's and of the
EEIMOT ¢ Company's land and buildings is as follows:

R B A B R 4
BEzLERE

iR AR LA HE R 4
HEZRF

HREBARHRL
HEZLHR
BT

15. #EEBIE

B¥E
R-ZE-%-H—H
21

BART  BENRE

R-ZEE-F+-A=t—-H

#E

AEERRZABRAR
“EE-Ff-A=t-H
2 BRER (MfE)

RERE
R-ZEE-F+-A=t—-H

R-ZEZTF+-A=1+—H

*%E 3|
et s ZBEEE i ks ZBEEE
AR®TIT ARBETT AR®TFIT AR®TT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
Land use rights in the PRC
under medium-term leases 26,424 24,662 22,335 20,480
Buildings in the PRC under
medium-term leases 228,873 230,309 209,310 213,168
Land and buildings in
Hong Kong under long
leases 14,569 14,896 — —
269,866 269,867 231,645 233,648

15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

AREFT AB®FL
The Group The Company
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
COST
At 1 January 2001 48,079 47,729
Additions 117,443 107,228
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (28,643) (25,924)
At 31 December 2001 136,879 129,033
IMPAIRMENT
Impairment losses recognised for the year and
balance at 31 December 2001 (note)
8,093 8,093
NET BOOK VALUES
At 31 December 2001 128,786 120,940
At 31 December 2000 48,079 47,729

Mz @ SR AEEHREEIRZIRESHE Note: During the year, the Group reviewed the carrying amounts of

TER > WHRIMBOEERIRCDELE construction in progress and identified that certain of those
BEEIEEL - Bt - ZEEEIREN construction in progress either have no economic value to the
REEERKEEEERDNAKREE Group or have ceased construction work. Accordingly, the
5 o carrying amounts of those identified construction in progress

are reduced to their respective negligible recoverable amounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2001

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (continued)

F5M ¥

= —2TRE = —2TTF
ARBTFT ARETFR ABRHFT ARETT

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
11,952 6,032 11,862 5,943
116,834 42,047 109,078 41,786
128,786 48,079 120,940 47,729

The buildings are located in the PRC under medium-term

leases.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

57
i3]
ARBF T
Technical
knowhow
Rmb'000

4,568

4,568

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION

At 1 January 2001
Amortised for the year
Written off

At 31 December 2001

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31 December 2001

At 31 December 2000

REPORT

1,299
457

1,756

2,812

3,269

MER
AaRA
AREFT
Development
costs
Rmb'000

1,820
(1,820)

862
461
(1,323)

958

ait
ARETT

Total
Rmb'000

6,388

(1,820)

4,568

2,161
918
(1,323)

1,756

2,812

4,227

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(REEBARRTENER
SEF-Fr=AS1-AUEE

17.

18.

MEATRSE 17.

FEHRERR
BEMB AR ZFIFHRHEE40 -

BEAFHEL 18.

FEMRERA

Unlisted investments, at cost
Share of net assets

R-ZBEE-—FE+-A=1+—H &&E
B zEEARFEBNOT :

Name

ERHAHEARROERAF
Ningxia Beiren Xihua Printing Limited

TR NEBORBHEHEERAA
Beijing Beiren Hengtong Printing
Machinery Sales Limited

BN AEBDRERERA R
Guangzhou Beiren Hengtong Printing
Machinery Limited

EELADRBHEHEREALA
Liaoning Beiren Printing
Machinery Sales Limited

(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted investments/shares, at cost

H4T
THE COMPANY
-5%-% L TIY
ARBFT ARBF 5
2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000

69,957 52,232

Details of the subsidiaries are set out in note 40.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

*x%ME 3/

2% —EZRER 225 —EZRER
AR®TIT ARHFT AR®TT ARHFT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
— — 12,373 —
10,687 — — —
10,687 — 12,373 —

Particulars of the associates at 31 December 2001 are as

follows:

(%)
Place of Percentage of
establishment registered capital
and operation held by the Group  Principal activity
REARLANE 4359  RAEENRIRH
PRC Provision of
printing services
REARLNE 45  SHEENRIMRE 4
PRC Sale of printing
machines and
accessories for
printing machines
REARLNE 30 WMBTEORBREMG
PRC Market of printing
machines and
accessories for
printing machines
REARLNE 49  HEERIMRE S
PRC Sale of printing

machines and
accessories for
printing machines
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20.

2001

EERTERRA
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ETEER

RESTEBRENE =+ K
(B EE IMEEBRER (FE2b)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

19. DEFERRED STAFF ACCOMMODATION

COST
Staff accommodation expense incurred

Amount written off to the income statement on derecognition
as intangible asset in accordance with SSAP 29 (note 2b)

ARE T

THE GROUP

AND THE COMPANY
Rmb’000

(Eit)

(Restated)

41,503

(41,503)

WN-EZEE+-_A=+-HRK At 31 December 2000
“EZ-F+-H=+—H and 31 December 2001 =
HEthEE 20. OTHER ASSETS
£ 3. ] NG|
—ZZT-f “ZTEF —ZZ-f “ZZTE
AEBFT AREFT ARBFT ARETFL
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
BERREMES Government bonds and debentures = 120 = 120
HirgE Other investment 32,727 32,727 32,727 32,727
32,727 32,847 32,727 32,847

Hhik & —EE%30,000,0007T
(ANER#£32,727,0007T) 2738 » AR
BE AR (YD)
RIBESAFEHZ S PG ([HE
) BRFERERRATHERE
ZYE  HELFERBHEE 2GR
FEEHIXNERATEEEE
56,478,0007T ([RZREFFK]) » &K
BHWRE - PARBERER=ZZ =
TZA=THAIX c REEFNRE
EESBERPIAIRZENLRIE
T o IMPEEERERERNHA AR
SENREHE KA KABE
30,000,000t Y B 22 M 230 7% UL E Uk
BN ZREFR o

ANNUAL REPORT

The other investment represents a payment of
HK$30,000,000 (Rmb32,727,000 equivalent) for purchase
consideration for four shops (the "Properties”) located in
Macau. According to the terms of various sale and purchase
promissory agreements (the "Sales and Purchase
Promissory Agreements"”), the vendor of the Properties has
the option to request the Company to waive its right to buy
the Properties if the vendor makes instalment payments
("Option Payments") totalling HK$56,478,000 to the
Company in accordance with agreed terms and schedules,
the last of which is expected to be made before 30 December
2002. The Option Payments were recorded as "Option
Payments Received" under current liabilities in the balance
sheet. If the vendor of the Properties fails to pay the total
Option Payments on the expiry date, the Company would
utilise the payment of HK$30,000,000 to acquire the
Properties and forfeit the amount of the Option Payments
received.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(REEB AR EAER
SEE-FHoASt-AUFE

2. #® 21.
B Raw materials
EEMm Work-in-progress

ERm Finished goods

FE#E A K ¥38,561,000T (=B &
T . ARM21,591,0007T) @ HEE
mARK#214,158,0007t ' (ZEEZEZ
£ AR®21,807,0007T) R EK M
AR#161,803,0007t (ZEZEF :
AR #5,458,0007T) °

FEHE AR ¥37,863,000T (=B F
ZF . ARM¥21,591,0007T) @ EE
mAK#¥194,491,000 T (= EE=Z
£ AR#21,807,0007Tt REK B A
K#154,729,000T (ZZEEF : A
S #55,458,0007C) °

22. BER FAARRHEMEKRRR 22.

ERER Accounts receivable
R Prepayments

Hi YR Other receivables
e Prepaid taxes and levies

ARA—RETEFATE-—BNT
REVSFRER -

78

(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

INVENTORIES
F5E 547
= —2TRE = —2TRE
ARBFT ARETFRT ABRHFT ARETFR
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
79,078 66,537 37,863 41,092
240,085 246,511 194,491 216,977
166,148 166,971 154,729 151,346
485,311 480,019 387,083 409,415

Included in the Group's balance above are raw materials of
Rmb38,561,000 (2000: Rmb21,591,000), work-in-progress
of Rmb214,158,000 (2000: Rmb21,807,000) and finished
goods of Rmb161,803,000 (2000: Rmb5,458,000) which are
carried at net realisable value.

Included in the Company's balance above are raw materials
of Rmb37,863,000 (2000: Rmb21,591,000), work-in-
progress of Rmb194,491,000 (2000: Rmb21,807,000) and
finished goods of Rmb154,729,000 (2000: Rmb5,458,000)
which are carried at net realisable value.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

F5E 547

= —2TERE = —2ERE
ARBFT ARETFRT ARHFT ARETFRT

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
126,124 68,234 104,065 51,740
16,863 14,251 14,594 14,091
19,545 23,916 12,346 21,740
— 8,612 — 7,934
162,532 115,013 131,005 95,505

Customers are normally given a credit period of 90 - 180
days.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

22.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND

(%) OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
*%E F4F
k3 k2 “ZEZEF it 1 St p 3% 23
ARE®TIT ARHFT AR®TT AREFT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
BREFIREINAT The aged analysis of accounts
receivable is as follows:
REH Amount not yet due 116,822 53,258 101,734 48,523
BRTER—F Overdue by less than one year 4,802 6,997 2,090 2,733
BHBBE—FETEB=-F Overdue by more than one year,
but not exceeding two years 3,699 6,624 — 136
BHBB-_FETEB=F Overdue by more than two years,
but not exceeding three years 801 1,284 241 277
BEHBER=F Overdue by more than three years — 71 — 71
126,124 68,234 104,065 51,740

REER  REERAQATZHME
YR A B 1 F L 17 U P B < AR
w4 AR %10,000,0007c (=B
Z &£ : AR%10,000,0007t) #YEHA
BR - ZEEFHEEEE - EHRE
A 2 AERRE - AN EREERE
REGELEHER - EESHEES
BEESLBEMZEXHNBINLFTEA
RTHELEE SRERNTFAE -

EEMEFNREEEEREEEL
HESBLRER  TEEREIEE
ZABEHEEZEF B AN T F
LR - WRERBEBEERMETR
gEUR B EB 0 IR ELA K% 4,562,0007T
(ZZ2EZF . AR%4,640,0007T)
HIIE K21 -

R=—ZZZHE+_A=1+—H &K
ERAAFzEMERRAEE—%F
AER#%1,600,000tNEEER @ Z
GREREFELIEE -

ANNUAL REPORT

At the balance sheet date, included in other receivables of
the Group and the Company were certain fixed deposits
placed with financial institutions in the PRC amounting to
approximately Rmb10,000,000 (2000: Rmb10,000,000),
which have already been matured. However, due to internal
problems of these institutions, the Company has been unable
to uplift these deposits. All of these financial institutions are
operating under valid business licences and permits issued
by the People's Bank of China to operate as financial
institutions.

The directors are taking all reasonable measures to secure
the repayment of these deposits and ceased the accrual of
interest until it is established that the interest will probably
be received by the Company. As at the balance sheet date,
a provision of Rmb4,562,000 (2000: Rmb4,640,000) for
doubtful recovery of these deposits has been made in
respect of the estimated non-recoverable portion of these
deposits.

At 31 December 2000, included in other receivables of the

Group and the Company was a designated deposit of
Rmb1,600,000, which was fully repaid during the year.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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23. HBITEREAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

£ 31 ] F4F
—22-F “EEEE —E22-f% “EEEE
ARBFT AREFT ARBFT AREFT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
FRHBEB=EAN Bank deposits with maturity over
|THEN three months 21,224 42,117 21,224 42,117
EtRTERERES Other bank balances and cash 196,842 85,303 174,390 73,623
218,066 127,420 195,614 115,740

REER > AEERTERRESE
B 17 7024,088,0007T (=B EE
& : ##38,905,000T) * ET
36,000t (ZZZZF : |M)RHTT

As at the balance sheet date, the Group's bank balances
and cash included foreign currency deposits of
HK$24,088,000 (2000: HK$38,905,000), US$36,000 (2000:
nil) and JPY8,715,000 (2000: nil) equivalent to approximately

8,715,000t (ZEEEF | &) » &
H#H AR #¥26,409,0005T (ZBEZ
& . AR#¥41,266,0007T) °

an aggregate of Rmb26,409,000 (2000: Rmb41,266,000).

24, MEFIRER 24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
F&EE b /|
—EE—4 g 323 —2Z-f “ZZEF
AB®TIT ARHFT AR®TT ARHFT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
B RTIRRAMAT The aged analysis of accounts
payable is as below:

BEFRB-F Due within one year 68,960 73,626 39,677 58,569

BHEA—FETEB_F Due more than one year, but not
exceeding two years 33,867 — 27,201 —
102,827 73,626 66,878 58,569

25. HtERFRR 25. OTHER PAYABLES
F&EE b /|
it 3 2t ZEEER =t & =3 ZEEER
AR®TIT ARHFT AR®TT ARHFT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
BRIEA Staff welfare 11,625 9,780 8,106 7,888
HEiEAR Other payables 34,484 38,152 18,617 25,648
46,109 47,932 26,723 33,536
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
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27.

Value added tax

Urban maintenance and
construction tax

Sales tax

Property tax

Income tax

Land tax

Other taxes

28.

L REWEEIEEYE S
ERRZFERR

BRI 2FE -

ANNUAL

REPORT

For the year ended 31 December 2001

AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Amounts due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest free and have no predetermined terms

of repayment.

PROVISION FOR TAXES AND LEVIES

*5H NG|

—ZZ-F¥ “EEEF —22-F¥ “ZETE
AR¥TT AREF T ARBTT AREFT

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000
17,322 1,258 15,947 =
1,169 17 1,120 166
27 50 9 45
— 456 — 456
4,182 2,462 5,507 2,462
= 61 = 61
552 19 535 =
23,252 4477 23,118 3,190

OPTION PAYMENTS RECEIVED

The amount represents the Option Payments made by the
vendor of the Properties to the Company according to the
agreed terms and schedules of the Sale and Purchase
Promissory Agreements, details of which are set out in note
20.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(REEB AR EAER
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29.

30.

™

R U T REER 2
FIRAR

RITER
Htt &

TRERERIHAMT

BRERBRIAN-FR
BE-FETRA-F

B —FHHER
JIANRBEE

—FRIHEN

29.

Borrowings comprise unsecured
loans as follows:

Bank loans
Other loan

The maturity of the above loans
is as follows:

On demand or within one year
More than one year, but not
exceeding two years

For the year ended 31 December 2001

Less: Amounts due within one year

shown under current liabilities

Amounts due after one year

HERBE —EHBNREEAR
AAMNER - WHBBEREAAR
#5264,550,0007C (ZZEFEF . AR
#£20,000,0007T) KSR 1TE R * A
DERAKER AT LAEE QTR

HIER
Bz &

#iff  EBTRARERE

300,000,000 R EEA K — T2 & BRAR
100,000,000 R EREEARE -T2 EBRHER

BORROWINGS
¥ L] SN
-$3-% -ITTF  -PPEE  -TIIF
AEETT ARETFT ARETT ARETFT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
265,550 21,000 220,000 5,000
200 — — —
265,750 21,000 220,000 5,000
264,050 21,000 220,000 5,000
1,700 — — —
265,750 21,000 220,000 5,000
(264,050) (21,000) (220,000) (5,000)
1,700 — — —

Other loan represents a loan granted from the PRC
government to the Company for purposes as specified by
the PRC government. In addition, included in borrowings is
bank loans totalling Rmb264,550,000 (2000:
Rmb20,000,000) which is guaranteed by BGC, the
Company's ultimate holding company.

30. SHARE CAPITAL
it 1 kS ZZRRE
ARBTT ARETT
2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000

Registered, issued and fully paid:

300,000,000 ordinary A Shares of Rmb1 each 300,000 300,000
100,000,000 ordinary H Shares of Rmb1 each 100,000 100,000

BRERBMENLBEEE -

400,000 400,000

There were no movements in the share capital of the
Company for both years.
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31. fEfm

550 THE GROUP
RZZEZE-F-H At1January 2000
- RARGHR — as originally stated
- BIH8% (f&k2a)  — prior period adjustment
(note 2a)

- EfiitiR — as restated
REZRF Net profit for the year

- RARGHR — as originally stated

— Al (ff&F2b)  — prior period adjustment

(note 2b)

- EfiitiR — as restated
KEFBAR Appropriations
ERERE Dividend paid
RKBRE2ER Amount set aside for

proposed dividend
WZZZEE+=H  At31 December 2000
=ir=f
REFRF Net profit for the year
KERBIE Appropriations
ERERE Dividend paid
REKBREER Amount set aside for
proposed dividend
WZZZ-%+=F  At31 December 2001
=ir=f
VNG| THE COMPANY
RZZZEZE—F—H At1January 2000
- RARGHR — as originally stated
- BIHA% (ft&k2a)  — prior period adjustment
(note 2a)

- EfiitiR — as restated
REZRF Net profit for the year

- RREHR — as originally stated

- BIH8% (fH&k2b)  — prior period adjustment

(note 2b)

- EfiitiR — as restated
KEFBAR Appropriations
ERERE Dividend paid
RKBREER Amount set aside for

proposed dividend
WZZZEE+=F  At31 December 2000

S
REZRF Net profit for the year
KERBIE Appropriations
ERERE Dividend paid
RKBREER Amount set aside for

proposed dividend

RZZZE-F+-H  At31 December 2001
==

2001 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

31. RESERVES

Statutory
Statutory public Discretionary
Share Capital surplus welfare surplus Retained Dividend
premium reserve reserve fund reserve profits reserve Total

Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000

316,663 13,206 44,405 38,751 42,979 74,375 = 530,379

— — — = - — 22,000 22,000

316,663 13,206 44,405 38,751 42,979 74,375 22,000 552,379

_ _ _ — - 50,831 = 50,831
_ _ _ - —  (39428) —  (39428)
_ _ _ — - 11,403 = 11,403
- - 1,099 1,099 - (2,198) - -

— — — = - — (22,000) (22,000)

— — = — - (40,000) 40,000 =

316,663 13,206 45,504 39,850 42,979 43,580 40000 541782

— - - 28,413 - 28,413
= = 2,508 2,508 = (5,016) = =
= = = = = —  (40,000)  (40,000)

— — = — - (48,000) 48,000 =

316,663 13,206 48,012 42,358 42,979 18,977 48,000 530,195

316,663 12,7179 44,361 38,707 42,979 83,707 = 539,196

— — = — — — 22,000 22,000

316,663 12,779 44,361 38,707 42,979 83,707 22,000 561,196

_ _ - — - 55,080 - 55,080
_ _ — - — (39,428) = (39,428)
= = = = = 15,652 = 15,652
— — 1,099 1,099 - (2,198) - -

_ _ — - — —  (22000)  (22,000)

— — = — - (40,000) 40,000 =

316,663 12,779 45,460 39,806 42,979 57,161 40000 554848

— - - 29,282 - 29,282
= = 2,508 2,508 = (5,016) = =
— - - — - —  (40,000)  (40,000)

— — = — - (48,000) 48,000 =

316,663 12,779 47,968 42,314 42,979 33,421 48,000 544,130

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CRIEE
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wEm (F)

31.

(@)

(b)

(c)

DREERRER)

REEEREETIBRITHIR AT
BT MEBRBTHRERR
EROFAEZEER -

ROTEMRILZE @ EAKEHE
ARBENT 2 EEFERR
R EEEZ=RERAER
fHEA - REBERFHEBRE
AR¥427, 000 THEREE (=
ZEEZF . AK¥427,0007T)

RETFEERLIERKFE &
BARESFomMETES
HEFEZRHRARBIZE D
ZTEEEATES  BEEHE
STEEREMERAZESZE
TAHIE - REEHRPBEEE
BERmMBAAFEEFERAE - A
BRENFESIRHRAEEARYE
3,978,000 T (ZZEZEEF : A
FR#%54,068,0007T) ° LLiEE
ERFERESBEFP R -

BAEADARERE  FAURDEHE

#fE - ERRBREEARE TR
BAARR °

(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

31. RESERVES (continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Share premium represents the excess of proceeds
received on issue of shares over the par value of
registered share capital net of share issuing
expenses.

The excess of the net assets contributed by BGC over
the par value of shares issued thereto at the date of
establishment is credited to the capital reserve.
Included in the Group’s capital reserve is negative
goodwill of Rmb427,000 (2000: Rmb427,000).

According to relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC, a company is required to make an appropriation
at the rate of 10 per cent of the profit after taxation of
the company, prepared in accordance with PRC
accounting standards, to the statutory surplus reserve
account until the accumulated balance has reached
50 per cent of the registered capital of the company.
During the year, certain prior year adjustments had
been made to the financial statements prepared under
the PRC accounting standards with the effect to
reduce retained profits and the Company is,
accordingly, required to reverse the previous years'
appropriations to the extent of Rmb3,978,000 (2000:
Rmb4,068,000) from the statutory surplus reserve in
accordance with the provisions of the PRC accounting
standards. This amount of reversal has been deducted
from the current year's appropriation.

The share premium, capital reserve and statutory surplus
reserve are non-distributable to shareholders other than
when the Company is in liquidation.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

31. RESERVES (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

According to the PRC relevant laws and
regulations, a company is required to make
an appropriation at the rate of 5 to 10 per cent
of the profit after taxation of the company,
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting
standards, to the statutory public welfare fund
account ("PWF"). The PWF will be utilised on
capital items for employees' collective welfare,
and unutilised PWF must be kept in cash.

The appropriation to the 2001 PWF is made
at 10% (2000: 10%). During the year, certain
prior year adjustments had been made to the
financial statements prepared under the PRC
accounting standards with the effect to reduce
retained profits and the Company is,
accordingly, required to reverse the previous
years' appropriations from the PWF to the
extent of Rmb3,978,000 (2000:
Rmb4,068,000) in accordance with the
provisions of the PRC accounting standards.
This amount of reversal has been deducted
from the current year's appropriation.

As at 31 December 2001, the Company's
unutilised PWF was Rmb42,314,000 (2000:
Rmb39,806,000).

In accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association, the Company may appropriate funds to
the discretionary surplus reserve after it discharges
its obligations on the statutory reserves.

(i)

(i)

The retained profits of the Group include
Rmb7,000 (2000: nil) retained by an associate
of the Group.

According to the Company's Articles of
Association and the relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC, the amount of reserve
distributable to shareholders is based on the
total of the Company's discretionary surplus
reserve and retained profits, prepared under
the PRC accounting standards and prepared
under Hong Kong accounting standards,
whichever is lower. As at 31 December 2001,
the amount distributable to the Company's
shareholders is Rmb76,406,000 (2000:
Rmb100,140,000).

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31.

32.

(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

iR (&) 31. RESERVES (continued)

(9) RERBEIIEEREEREE (g) Dividend reserve represents dividends proposed or
Hz@RESREREZRE declared after the balance sheet date and is disclosed
WHAESE B LS EBAR as a separate component of equity at the balance
o F LU o sheet date.

RARZEIEFRSR 32. UNPROVIDED DEFERRED TAXATION

BB HIER TR ER B RIZR R A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the financial

KA RAE R IR MR AR © statements in respect of tax losses available to offset future

profits as it is not certain that the tax losses will be utilised
in the foreseeable future.

REBREREERRARZELRSG At the balance sheet date, the major components of the net

HREE (BB TEBHF unprovided deferred tax asset (liability) were as follows:

FEERF LT
THE GROUP
AND THE COMPANY
= T —zzes
AR®TT ARHFT
2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
BERZZHBZE: Tax effect of timing differences because of:
BIREE Provision for bad and doubtful debts 3,068 2,809
REEE Provision for slow-moving inventories 2,355 2,104
HitZRZ Other timing differences (120) (120)
5,303 4,793
REARFERARZIELFRESEHERE The amount of the unprovided deferred tax credit (charge)
(BB WT : for the year is as follows:
FEERF LT
THE GROUP
AND THE COMPANY
= T —gees
AR®TT ARHFT
2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000

KERZ2HBZE: Tax effect of timing differences because of:

EIRER Provision for bad and doubtful debts 259 314
REERE Provision for slow-moving inventories 251 (1,040)
510 (726)
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33. mAEneRBRME

(a) MRRABARBERIDSIHZ

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

&

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT

(@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net

Re&RARFEF cash inflow from operating activities:
—gT-% —EEER
ARETFT AREFT
2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
(Et)
(Restated)
REARF Profit before taxation 41,126 18,046
BOBENAXA Share of results of an associate ©) —
FEBA Interest income (2,150) (4,504)
FEZH Interest expense 8,159 2,515
e Depreciation 47,512 32,342
HERT  BENRE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
ZR% 1,261 3,247
BREESH Amortisation of intangible assets 918 627
B EREME Intangible assets written off 497 =
EEEBTFEE MM Derecognition of deferred staff accommodation — 41,503
BT BENRERE Impairment losses in respect of property, plant and
ZHERX equipment 31,690 =
REIBRERX Impairment losses in respect of construction in progress 8,093 —
EREEETIRARER Deferred staff quarters expense paid — (820)
BHEE Exchange difference — 78
FE 2B Increase in inventories (5,292) (58,408)
ERIER - BEHRR Increase in accounts receivable, prepayments and
Hib KR ZEm other receivables (47,519) (23,090)
EEBEH 2R Decrease in deferred value added tax = 1,489
{30 5% 2 18 40 Increase in accounts payable 29,201 16,236
HEtEARZRD Decrease in other payables (1,823) (3,948)
ERHBA RS H Decrease in amounts due to minority shareholders
BRERZHD of subsidiaries (3,540) (5,047)
HEERZEM Increase in sales deposits received 2,221 23,265
BIREE 220 Increase in provision for taxes and levies 17,055 1,211
EETHOIHZREMA  NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 127,402 44,742
2001 ANNUAL REPORT BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(REEB AR EAER
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33. mAEneRBRME

(&) 33.

(b) FFEMBSBSWK:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (continued)

(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the

year:

Amount
due to ultimate Minority
holding company interests Bank loans
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
R-EZZF-A-H At 1 January 2000 — 26,351 15,780
ks — B 7 (D) Acquisition of a business (note) 181,419 — —
rEEHEN New loans raised during the year — — 5,220
BN Repayment (54,665) — —
SEURRELER Loss attributable to minority shareholders — (2,004) —
RZZZZE+-F=+—H At 31 December 2000 126,754 24,347 21,000
BN Repayment (51,281) — —
rEEHEN New loans raised during the year — — 244,750
HEARDH Contributions from minority

BRR M shareholders of a subsidiary — 7,030 —
SERRELER Loss attributable to minority shareholders — (1,025) —
RZZZ2—F+-F=+—H At 31 December 2001 75,473 30,352 265,750

BiaE -

REBZ-_ZZZEF+ A=+
—BEE AEERIEAEE
BET HEBNMBEER
8 HEBARE
181,419,000t ° ZIEWEE
MR —BEEZEFEAA=TAHF
BARRZBRA © ZWEIT
BEAHEB R-ZTZEF+
A=+ HEXNHBEAR

Note:

#£54,665,0007T ' FHRERH

B AR #50,251,0007T °

(c) BRERFEFEVRAFSIN (c)

R=ERAEIHH
ROERRRE

Bank balances and cash with maturity
less than three months

-32-%
ARBFI
2001
Rmb'000

196,842

During the year ended 31 December 2000, the Group
acquired assets and liabilities of a business from BGC
at a consideration of Rmb181,419,000, details of which
are set out in a circular dated 30 September 2000
despatched to the Company's shareholders. There is
no goodwill arising from the acquisition. A total amount
of Rmb54,665,000 has been paid as at 31 December
2000. Net cash outflow in connection with the acquisition
of the business amounted to Rmb50,251,000.

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents:

—p2Rs
ARBFT
2000
Rmb'000

85,303



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

GRIGE B AREIEARD)
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3. FRELTNXS 34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
RAFE  REEHEBEEEATRS During the year, the transactions between the Group and
wE related parties are as follows:
Beijing Yan Beijing Beiren
Long Import and BGC Hotel Minority “Liaoning
Export Company (ultimate holding (a subsidiary of shareholders of Beiren”
(asubsidiary of BGC) company) BGC) certain subsidiaries (an associate)
Wi -z3% -23% -s%% -s%% -s%%
ARBTA ARBTA ARBFA ARMTR ARMTR
NOTE 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
REHE Sales transacted on
behalf of the Company with (a) 1132 393 427,581 353,773 - - - - - —
SEELRIE Sale of printing machines to (d) — — 11,845 — — — — — 6,832 —
HEMH Sale of materials to (d) - - 1,121 2,795 - - 216 73 - -
HEXHE Reimbursement of expenses from (d) - - - - 1,611 - - - - -
HERS Sale commission paid to (a)/(b) 34 12 11,013 9,122 — — — — — —
THERE Payment for land use right to (b) - - 2,000 2,000 - - - - - -
HEE Trademark fee paid to (c) — — 5,777 3,707 — — — = = =
BEMH Purchase of materials from (d) 6,040 — 5219 14,916 — — 15,764 10721 — —
#BRAEHRHEE  Repair and maintenance fee paidto  (e) - - - 63 = = — — — _
WiE-BEH Acquisition of a business from (f) - — — 181,419 — — — — — —
Hfat - Note:
(@ MREBLAZEEEAQATR—N (@) By an agreement dated 14 July 1993, BGC agreed to
R=FELtB+MAFTZZH be the sole sales agent for the Company's products in
Z LASEREEELAAZ the PRC at a fee equal to three per cent of the domestic
EREFEZBREENE sales in the PRC of the Company's products.
KEERABEERAGERE
FEISEEEE 23% °©
RIFBEEAEE ZHEBE QR By an agreement dated 14 July 1993, Beijing Yan Long
AEEELOATAR-—AN= Import & Export Company, a subsidiary of BGC, agreed
FEtATMARTZ 2% > 1t to provide to the Company export sales, marketing and
AEEAEEOATRERRD after sales services for the Company's products at a fee
AEMOBOARRBRMHEOHEE equal to three per cent of the annual export turnover of
MGHEBEREERE - K products marketed by Beijing Yan Long Import & Export
ERASEREEEEELD Company.
RRIZEMEFEFEZ3% °
RIE—ZZE—F+—HA=1H By an agreement dated 20 November 2001, the above
R — i 0 LaiBEde A agreement with BGC dated 14 July 1993 was cancelled
EER-AN=5+tA+HmA and terminated.
TR ZEEBUERALL o
2001 ANNUAL REPORT BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CRIEE
SEE-FHoASt-AUFE

FRELRXS (&)
HiZE © (&

34.

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

)

DREERRER)

REBIEAEEERQATR—AN
WENRA T NBRIZ 2% @ b
AEBREARTHEBRELA
HIRE - BRREERE 5
H50F - FRERASEARE
2,000,0007T * FHHHR— NI =
F—H—HiEstHE o L AEEITR
B =A% 5% E R IE M 5L 34(a) AT i
SHERMESPBR - MZFHEM
£ D AR#¥2,000,0007T © 1t
ASEBEBERBRZARE
2,000,000 CEESHEME 2 =58

MRADT e

REBALAEFERATR—IIA
=F+tA+MAFIM 2 4
ASERERARARZERET
ATEAL A FZ 2 fE R
WEAESZ ARKE15,0007T5K L
REBESHERERAEAIFZEE
M2 SEEIRES 2 1% E (LU E
BEEHE) -

RELAEERARQTR-N
N=FtA+HBEFTLZH
& LAKREERADFEZE
REEETHARRY  RXAF
WE-FRZRBERELEE
A 115% 2 B @b A EE K
EMITZH -

HOBRRETHRERBERD
BB EE R D HR R E /Y
TRFEAT ©

@) 5= B K B A B S E R ED Rl
BIEZERASEEEEELF
B E W IRFREST - MEKRES
RAQNRDESHINHESE

=

E °

ARAREENAZALREA
KBIEE

AEEBHERRERLHILA
EERERE  ZYBYE=
BEHELARETHERET
2 LtASERBRREERAR
LUBYE=2#EIREAN
13%%T &

RAFE  AEEQLEAEE
BA-—BEXNFHEEERA
& B—XBUEEIEQT
WHNEEREBEEEEA
E#181,419,0007T ° :%IEUNEE
ER-ZEZEZEF+—-A+EH
ZEBBRRAEHES -

(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Note: (continued)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

By an agreement dated 18 June 1994, BGC agreed to
grant to the Company the right to use the factory area,
roads and relevant facilities for a term of 50 years at a
fee of Rmb2,000,000 per annum with the term calculated
from 1 January 1993. BGC also agreed to deduct this
fee from the sole agent fee as mentioned in note 34(a).
If the annual sole agent fee receivable by BGC is less
than Rmb2,000,000, BGC agreed to refund the amount
equal to the excess of Rmb2,000,000 over the sole agent
fee to the Company.

By an agreement dated 14 July 1993, BGC agreed to
grant to the Company the right to use the "Beiren"
trademark for its products at a fee payable quarterly of
Rmb15,000 or at the rate of one per cent of the sale
proceeds from products using the "Beiren" trademark
during that relevant period, whichever is the higher.

By an agreement dated 14 July 1993, BGC and the
Company agreed to sell to each other raw materials at
original purchase prices and the Company further agreed
to sell to BGC processed parts at a price equal to 115
per cent of its production cost.

Sale and purchase of materials with the minority
shareholders were carried out at terms and price agreed
between the Group and the minority shareholders.

Sale of printing machines to BGC and the associate was
carried out at terms agreed between the Group and the
parties involved, the pricing of which was determined
with reference to the market price estimated by the
directors of the Company.

Expenses were reimbured by Beijing Beiren Hotel at the
amount incurred by the Company.

All the repair and maintenance work of the Group is
centrally co-ordinated by BGC and is carried out by
independent third party repair and maintenance
companies. BGC receives a service fee which is equal
to 13 per cent of the repair and maintenance fee paid to
the independent third party.

During the year ended 31 December 2000, the Group
acquired all assets and liabilities of a business from BGC
at a consideration of Rmb181,419,000, which was
determined on basis of a valuation report prepared by
an independent firm of professional valuers. The
acquisition was approved at an extraordinary general
meeting of the shareholders on 15 November 2000.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

35. RETIREMENT PLAN

According to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC,
the Group has to pay a sum equal to 19 per cent (2000: 19
per cent) of the total wages and salaries to the State, being
the Group's contribution in respect of the statutory retirement
fund in satisfaction of the Group's obligations to the PRC
employees' retirement benefits. Total expenses for 2001
amounted to Rmb14,187,000 (2000: Rmb9,202,000). Except
for the above, the Group has no other obligations and
commitments in respect of retirement benefits.

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2001 and 31 December 2000, the Group
and the Company had no outstanding contingent liabilities.

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2001, the Group and the Company had
the following capital commitments:

%M 3N
22— “ZEEE 2= “EEERE
ARETFT AR%TFr ARETT AREFT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
BEITARMERRBBERRA  Contracted but not provided for the
REBEET  HEARE purchase of property, plant and
equipment 17,082 73,460 17,082 73,460
EREBREHN Authorised but not contracted for
BERT  HENZE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment 647 — 647 —
ARBARNTE Capital contribution in a subsidiary — — 60,770 —
17,729 73,460 78,499 73,460

ANNUAL REPORT
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38. HEXRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

38. LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2001, the Group and the Company had
commitments for future minimum lease payments payable
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented

BEBASERENT : office, warehouse and factory facilities which fall due as
follows:
£3 1 | 3|
—$®-5  -TFF  -PE-§  -FIIF
ARBTFT AREFT AR®FT AREFT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
E—-FREH Within one year 913 987 260 385
FEERERDH In the second to fifth years inclusive 1,679 3,742 1,040 1,420
BERFEH Over five years 920 6,171 920 1,310
3,512 10,900 2,220 3,115

39. EHB®%zZzFHE

TKHE20fTH » AR A BRI FENE £
A T W= o BEBHIERZE 0 &R
A TR E R RY)EZ IR TERPIRY
Z—BYNE(HNED - EEZSRE
FYENEEERERYENEBHEE
TR o BRIIAWEI - EERFE=R
EMNEMIRREZTTE o RAT AL
#& B SE20 i 51l 97 #530,000,0007T Z
MIERARBEHYZE - MRFERYZE
NWEEREEZHEEAZINARGE
SRERE - ADFEER AT EIR
SEMNRFIE - XA FHEEFTHR ==
Z_F"_A—H F:EBELRQTFE
EFMENHEENBEERHZ -

RZBZ-—F+-HA=1+—Hz%
AREETR T EHEE=F N T BRER
IREMMEREREEAR ((BREE
) BEEH - BBHABE - REA=E
ST HN RIS TEB R SR
EEAT ((BRAEZETI]) 1953.47%FE
HEZENAEE o AQEEHES —X
F=FNF PEEREEEEAA
EERIL—BEERLT @ BREEd AED
RIMMAERSELT ([BRAEIL AL o
RN B GEEMAETHI53.47%5E
#H I E A EH60,770,0007T & B E 12
F o HESMBRE R ([BRfEd
AN ERARQABHNEREREA o ZER
BAANR®60,770,0007T B BRA
DEAIR-EE—F+-A=+—HH®
B AREIE -

39. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The Company entered into an agreement with the vendor of
the Properties, as described in note 20, pursuant to which
the Company agreed to exchange the original Properties
for the entire floor of another property (the “New Properties”)
located also in Macau. In the opinion of the directors, the
value of the New Properties is not significantly different from
that of the original Properties. Except for the exchange of
the properties, other terms under the Sales and Purchase
Promissory Agreements remain unchanged and the
Company could utilise the payment of HK$30,000,000 as
set out in note 20 to acquire the New Properties and forfeit
the amount of Option Payments received if the vendor of
the original Properties fails to pay the total Option Payments
on the expiry date. On 1 February 2002, the Company and
the vendor entered into a sale and purchase agreement for
the Company to acquire the New Properties.

Subsequent to 31 December 2001, the Group completed its
negotiations with a third party, Shaanxi Huanghe Engineering
Machinery Group Company Limited ("Shaanxi Huanghe"),
pursuant to which Shaanxi Huanghe would transfer its
53.47% interest in Shaanxi Huanggong Group Printing
Machinery Company Limited ("Shaanxi Huanggong") to the
Group. A new joint venture, Shaanxi Beiren Printing
Machinery Company Limited (“Shaanxi Beiren”), will be
established between the Company and another third party,
China Huarong Asset Management Corporation, and the
Company would inject the 53.47% interest in Shaanxi
Huanggong, together with Rmb60,770,000 and certain
property, plant and equipment, into Shaanxi Beiren as the
Company's portion of capital contribution. The amount of
capital contribution of Rmb60,770,000 has been disclosed
as the Company's capital commitment at 31 December 2001.
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40.

2001

P B 2 7)

LFER

Name

LRI ARMENEEER

Beijing Beiren Taihe Printing
and Casting Factory

ik Rk 3L
BERER

Place and
nature of
establishment/
incorporation

HE
SRMEH
PRC -
Co-operative
joint venture

REBRAE BREREAHAH
Sheenlite Limited Hong Kong -
Limited
liability
company
Wb AR SR HE
FR A7 I A A
Hebei Beiren Gei Zhi PRC -

Ji Chang Joint venture
limited by
shares

TREAELERIERE HE
RAF HAEEDE
Beijing Beiren Fuji PRC -

Printing Machinery Sino-foreign

Company Limited equity joint
venture
enterprise

B ADRNEHEREE  PE
AH BREAHAT
Haimen Beiren Printing PRC -

Machinery Company Limited

Limited liability
company

b A SUGE ED BB HE
BRI AR
Beijing Beiren Jing Yan PRC -

Printing Machinery Joint venture

Factory limited by
shares

ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

FAFMERES gMEs/ =B
ERITREZLH (%) RITRE RBHR FEXRH
EE M
Percentage of
registered/issued Registered/  Principal
share capital issued place of
held by the Company share capital  operation Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
62.5 —  AR#¥4,000,000% HE EEBOBEE M
(&)

(note) Rmb4,000,000 PRC Manufacture of
casting parts for
printing machines

100 - BE¥3IT BE RAEERMAFRN
EERREVAEE
HK$3  Hong Kong Provision of
Hong Kong
representative
office and asset
custodial service
to the Group
50.68 —  AR™4,802,600C HE EEGEK
Rmb4,802,600 PRC Manufacture of
paper feeder
machines
70 — £75,100,000 HE £ B RAGEN I
US$5,100,000 PRC Manufacture of form
printing machines

512 —  ARH¥29,000,000% HE A B R

Rmb29,000,000 PRC Manufacture of
printing machines

98.77 —  AR¥4,050,000 HE EEBOBRT M

Rmb4,050,000 PRC Manufacture of

accessories for
printing machines

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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40.

ELTR (&

LFER

Name

SIS PNEIL Tt PN

Beijing Beiren Printing
Machinery Transportation
Company

tREABRAEEEEER

Beijing Beiren Motor
Vehicle Repair and
Maintenance Centre

LRI AR BB

Beijing Beiren Printing
Machinery Accessories
Factory

b3t A PET R ED
BREMERAH

Beijing Beiren Yuxin Offset
Printing Limited

AR ALEDR
BREHEBRAR

Xian Beiren Beifu Printing
Machinery Sales Limited

LS NI A
ARAA

Zhejiang Beiren Printing
Machinery Sales Limited

M1t 1 A ED Rl B 8
BRAH

Hubei Beiren Printing
Machinery Sales Limited

AL 3T
WERME

Place and
nature of
establishment/
incorporation

HE
KEfEHGE

PRC -
Co-operative
joint venture

HE
ERFHAE

PRC -
Co-operative
joint venture

HE
2RAEH

PRC -

Co-operative
joint venture

HE
EREEHDA
PRC -
Limited liability
company

HE
BRERHAT
PRC -
Limited liability
company

HE
BREEHAH
PRC -
Limited liability
company

HE
EREEHDA
PRC -
Limited liability
company

i RUAERLAKMEBBERS
EiE - AEEEGEEEBERD

BLEA10% °

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Prepared under accounting principles generating accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EAFMGRBES gMmEs,/ =%
BRTRFZLH (%) BTRF EHME TERE
EE M
Percentage of
registered/issued Registered/  Principal
share capital issued place of
held by the Company share capital operation Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
100 —  AR™3,150,000t HE B
Rmb3,150,000 PRC Transportation
business
— 100 AER#200,000t HH REBE
Rmb200,000 PRC Repair and
maintenance of
motor vehicles
94.65 —  AKR™2,000,000t HE EEDRBEH4
Rmb2,000,000 PRC Manufacture of
parts and
components for
printing machines
68.66 —  AR®22,430,000% HH R
E IR R A5
Rmb22,430,000 PRC Provision of
magazine and book
printing service
85 —  AR™1,500,000t HE HE DRI R B
Rmb1,500,000 PRC Sale of printing
machines and
accessories for
printing machines
55 —  AR®1,500,000t HHE SHEED R R B
Rmb1,500,000 PRC Sale of printing
machines and
accessories for
printing machines
51 —  AR®1,500,000t HHE S5 ED B R B

Rmb1,500,000 PRC Sale of printing
machines and
accessories for

printing machines

Note: According to the joint venture agreement on Beijing
Beiren Taihe Printing and Casting Factory, the Group's
share of profit or loss is 70%.
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THE EFFECT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARISING FROM THE DIFFERENCES BETWEEN

PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND HONG KONG

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

THE GROUP
Z22RE ZZZRE
HAE FHEE
ARBTFIT ARBETT ARBTT AREFT
Net profit Net profit Net assets Net assets
for for as at as at
2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
(E3t) (E3t)
(Restated) (Restated)
As reported under PRC
accounting standards
— as originally stated 64,282 51,423 951,126 974,627
— prior period adjustment — (21,194) — (39,783)
— as restated 64,282 30,229 951,126 934,844
Adjustments made to conform with
accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong:
— difference in valuation of net
assets contributed to the
Company by BGC — — (60,198) (60,198)
— consequential adjustment on
net assets contributed by BGC — 1,212 9,090 9,090
— difference in valuation of capital
contribution to subsidiaries 31 27 (1,773) (1,742)
— receipt of option payments
recognised as income under
PRC accounting standards (4,092) — (24,209) (20,117)
— difference in recognition of staff
accommodation expense — (1,255) — 39,428
— difference in recognition of
impairment losses in respect of
property, plant and equipment
and construction in progress — 21,194 — 39,783
— difference in recognition of
liability for final dividends — — 48,000 —
— difference in provision for
diminution in value of other assets 8,333 = 8,333 =
— impairment losses in respect of
property, plant and equipment
and construction in progress (39,783) — — —
— others (358) (576) (174) 122
As reported under accounting
principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong 28,413 50,831 930,195 941,210
Less: prior year adjustments
— derecognition of libaility for
final dividends for the year
ended 31 December 2000 — — — 40,000
— derecognition of deferred
staff accommodation — (39,428) — (39,428)
28,413 11,403 930,195 941,782

Note:

B EFR A R F

The net profit for the year ended 31 December 2000 and the net assets
as at 31 December 2000 prepared under the accounting principles

generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adjusted as described in
note 2 to the financial statements.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2001 Auditors’s Report
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
As at 31 December 2001

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
De Shi (Jing) Shen Bao Zi (02) No. 082

To the shareholders of Beiren Printing Machinery Holdings Limited:

We were engaged to audit the Group’s and the Company’s balance
sheet as of 31 December, 2001 and the Group’s and the Company’s
profit and loss account and profits distribution and cash flow
statement, for the year then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Independent Auditing
Standards for Chinese Certified Public Accountants. Our audit
included such test of the accounting records and such other auditing
procedures as we considered necessary in the practical
circumstances of the Company.

In our opinion, such financial statements are prepared in conformity
with the “Accounting Standard”, and the “Accounting Regulations
for Business Enterprises” and, in all material respects, present
fairly the financial position of the Company as at 31 December,
2001 and the results of its operations and cash flow for the year
then ended. The accounting policies adopted follow the consistency
principle.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Shanghai CPA
Chinese Certified Public Accountants
Cui Jing Jing Yiging

Shanghai, China

17 April , 2002
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BE Assets
RBEE Current assets
ElES Cash and bank balances
L ES Bill receivables
JE Wtk 3% Account receivables
H i EWR Other receivable
BHIRER Prepayment
7E Inventories
SHER Deferred expenses

FRERDEEFRL

Disposal of current
assets clearance

RBEES Total current assets
REKE : Long term investment
REORERE Long term equity
REGERERE Investment
RERESR Long term
investment in debts
BEEE : Fixed assets
BEEERE Fixed assets, at cost

B RETIE

less: accumulated
depreciation

EEEERE
A EEEERE%RE  less: Provision for
diminution in value

of fixed assets

EEEEFH Fixed assets, net
REIR Construction in progress
EEEERE Disposal of fixed assets
clearance
EEEES Total fixed assets
ENEEREMEE : Intangible assets and other
assets:
BREE Intangible assets
REOGHER Long term deferred
expenses
EFEERHEMEREA  Total intangible assets and
other assets
BEEAT Total assets
2001 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Sheet

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
As at 31 December 2001

lif+3

Notes

© 00 N o>

11

13

14

15
15

16

16

Fixed assets, net book value

16

17

Bl AR¥T

Unit: RMB
BAHERE EHENE BLRAERE BLARFIH
The Group The Group  The Company  The Company
2001 Closing 2000 Opening 2001 Closing 2000 Opeing
balance balance balance balance
217,447,347.74 127,419,782.68 195,614,130.48 115,739,622.46
9,265,070.28 385,000.00 9,265,070.28 —
121,380,229.14  77,571,621.48 108,255,124.46  69,599,192.73
21,089,795.18  21,188,109.66  67,451,487.68 67,850,411.04
16,863,192.44  17,000,317.14  15,594,032.64  14,055,875.00
478,984,417.38  480,019,240.06 380,756,559.48 409,414,686.54
892,328.08 187,534.53 5,153.86 34,942.87
— 199,310.66 — —
865,922,380.24 723,970,916.21 776,941,558.88 676,694,730.64
15,470,000.38 —  72,463,337.67  46,740,232.69
24,393,800.00  32,847,000.00  24,393,800.00  32,847,000.00
39,863,800.38  32,847,000.00  96,857,137.67  79,587,232.69
863,137,497.74 798,905,514.60 728,094,612.20 712,856,101.67
366,321,896.92 331,485,439.92 325,116,010.61 308,285,224.58
496,815,600.82 467,420,074.68 402,978,601.59 404,570,877.09
31,689,714.46  31,689,714.46  31,689,714.46  31,689,714.46
465,125,886.36 435,730,360.22 371,288,887.13 372,881,162.63
128,528,475.51  38,575,218.28 120,940,688.12  38,482,898.09
— 1,175,299.82 — —
593,654,361.87 475,480,878.32 492,229,575.25 411,364,060.72
29,650,982.69  31,857,484.83  22,334,516.50  20,480,000.00
52,239,845.19  53,136,960.05  51,108,000.00  51,108,000.00
81,890,827.88  84,994,444.88  73,442,516.50  71,588,000.00

1,581,331,370.37 1,317,293,239.41 1,439,470,788.30 1,239,234,024.05

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Liabilities and
shareholders’ equity

Current liabilities
Short term loans
Accounts payable
Receipts in advance
Wages Payable
Staff welfare
Dividend payable
Taxes payable
Sundry payable
Other payable
Accruals

Long term liabilities payable

within one year
Total current liabilities
Long term liabilities:
Long term loans
Specific payable

Total long term liabilities

Deferred tax credit
Deferred tax credit

Total liabilities

Minority interests

Shareholders’ fund
Share capital

Capital reserve
Surplus reserve

including: statutory
public
welfare fund

Retained profits
Exchange reserve

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity

MRS HRRNARDD

Balance Sheet

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
As at 31 December 2001

FfaE

Notes

20
21
22

23
24
25
26

27

27
28

29

30
gill
32

32

33

B AR¥T

Unit: RMB
AHERE EHENE BLRAERE BLARFIH
The Group The Group  The Company  The Company
2001 Closing 2000 Opening 2001 Closing 2000 Opening
balance balance balance balance
247,100,000.00  21,000,000.00 220,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
103,536,793.80  81,255,201.62  67,927,415.91  58,343,131.11
32,234,303.01  37,302,905.79  21,537,025.76  31,136,839.20
5,259,796.07  18,157,125.31 3,692,281.41  16,453,560.10
10,437,631.40  10,153,866.04 8,105,470.26 7,888,313.90
48,000,000.00  40,000,000.00  48,000,000.00  40,000,000.00
23,251,647.27 (4,135,220.21) 23,117,898.36 (4,744,163.69)
523,834.26 86,901.78 487,224.75 71,102.96
110,360,419.30 153,349,642.29  94,289,034.50 149,633,491.14
— 59,335.75 — —
16,750,000.00 — — —
597,454,425.11 357,229,758.37 487,156,350.95 303,782,274.72
1,700,000.00 — — —
200,000.00 — — —
1,900,000.00 — — —
242,941.38 242,941.38 242,941.38 242,941.38
599,597,366.49 357,472,699.75 487,399,292.33 304,025,216.10
30,607,838.67  24,976,050.36 — —
400,000,000.00 400,000,000.00 400,000,000.00 400,000,000.00
399,511,301.04 399,511,301.04 399,511,301.04 399,511,301.04
133,349,797.59 120,377,259.99 133,249,400.57 120,276,862.97
42,358,869.42  35,872,600.62 42,308,670.91  35,822,402.11
18,262,946.55  14,953,808.69  19,310,794.36  15,420,643.94
2,120.03 2,119.58 — —
951,126,165.21 934,844,489.30 952,071,495.97 935,208,807.95

1,581,331,370.37 1,317,293,239.41 1,439,470,788.30 1,239,234,024.05

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AND PROFITS DISTRIBUTION

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

Wi
Notes
Income from major
operations 34
less: operating cost 35
sales tax and
surcharge 36

Profit from major operations
add: profit from other
operations
less: selling expenses
administrative
expenses
financial expenses 37

Operating profit
add: investment income
(less: loss) 38
non-operating income 39
less: non-operating
expenses 40

Total profits
less: income tax 41
add: minority interests

Net profit for the year
add: retained profits at the
beginning of the year 33

Distributable profits
less: statutory surplus reserve 33
statutory public welfare
fund 33

Profits distributable to
Shareholders
less: ordinary share
dividend payable 33

Retained profits carried
forward

REPORT

SHEFERHE

The Group
2001
(Accumulated)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

B AE¥T
Unit: RMB

SHLERHE BAFFERHE BAFLFERHE

The Group
2000
(Accumulated)

The Company
2001
(Accumulated)

The Company
2000
(Accumulated)

699,076,375.57  442,056,008.94  643,607,681.74  395,675,286.63
487,154,596.67  292,287,508.44  453434966.25  263,003,393.92
487388434 3,022,808.67  4405588.34  2,655094.20
207,047,804.56  146,745601.83  185,767,127.15  130,016,798.51
1669,482.52  1,603,124.02 956,214.89  1,790,910.82
31,195815.65  24,508,556.97  25514,871.44  20,191,979.39
90,915:896.73  63,684,407.00  73,319,922.86  49,638,155.77
5038,213.06  (1582,45556)  4,419,787.73  (3,764,753.38)
81,567,451.64  61,648217.35  83,468,760.01  65742,327.55
(4,234,399.62) —  (4266295.02)  (3,163,041.45)
1,229,275.87 94712.05  1,048,259.57 28,262.53
2,810,649.56  24,389,796.62  1,810,609.99  23,557,268.62
7575167833  37,353,132.78  78,440,11457  39,050,280.01
1373821456  8,646,937.85  13577,42655  8,622,116.34
2,268,211.69  1523,079.11 — —
64,281,675.46  30,229,274.04  64,862,688.02  30,428,163.67
1495380869  30,820,671.67  15420,643.94  31,078,112.99
7923548415  61,049,94571  80,283,331.96  61,506,276.66
6,486,268.80 304806851 648626880  3,042,816.36
6,486,268.80 304806851 648626880  3,042,816.36
66,262,946.55  54,953,808.60  67,310,794.36  55420,643.94
48,000,000.00  40,000,000.00  48,000,000.00  40,000,000.00
18,262,94655  14,953,808.69  19,310794.36  15420,643.94

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AND PROFITS DISTRIBUTION
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

FREH Supplementary information:

HE AHFERMN ASHLIFERAN BLARFERAN BLRNLERHY

Item The Group The Group ~ The Company  The Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

(Accumulated)

(Accumulated)

(Accumulated)

(Accumulated)

1. HE RERREEN 1
Frig Wiss

2. BHAKERAEMELX 2

3. BIHECKEESM 3.
(FRD) FELER

Profit from sale and disposal of
investee companies — — — —
Loss arising from natural disaster — — — —
Increase / (decrease) in profit
due to change in accounting
policies (11,813,200.00)  (21,193,986.67)  (8,333,200.00) (21,193,986.67)
4. EIEFHEESM 4

(BFED) MERE

Increase / (decrease)

in profit due to change in

accounting estimate = — — —
5. BHREARX 5,
6. Hft 6. Others — — — _

Loss arising from debt restructuring — — = =

MRS HRRNARDD

The notes from an integral part of the financial statements
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2001 ANNUAL

Wit

Notes

Cash Flows from
Operating Activities

Cash received from sales
of goods or rendering
of services

Other cash received

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid for goods and
services

Cash paid to and on behalf
of employees

Taxes and surcharges paid

Other cash paid relating to
operating activities 42

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from
operating activities

Cash Flow from Investing
Activities

Other cash received relating
to investing activities

Net cash received from
disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and
other long term assets

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid to acquire fixed
assets, intangible assets
and other long term
assets

Other cash paid relating to
investing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from
investing activities

REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

Efy : AR¥ T
Unit: RMB
AfEH BAFSH
FEY LEH FEY LEH
The Group The Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
751,127,009.05 539,132,931.86  688,779,870.21  475,172,212.75
19,167,030.95 27,392,103.21 14,136,374.55 26,480,192.18
770,294,040.00  566,525,035.07  702,916,244.76  501,652,404.93
479,527,693.30  295,197,613.28  456,065,305.65  260,892,014.30
111,233,083.00  111,674,053.11 91,379,396.96 97,980,018.33
51,079,120.29 53,852,134.72 45,277,353.21  47,392,944.09
78,130,562.42 70,119,604.27 60,715,155.31 58,355,676.01
719,970,459.01  530,843,405.38  653,437,211.13  464,620,652.73
50,323,580.99 35,681,629.69  49,479,033.63 37,031,752.20
120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00
2,235,885.54 3,915,021.07 2,227,899.55 3,502,800.21
2,355,885.54 4,035,021.07 2,347,899.55 3,622,800.21
124,579,376.61 97,117,751.76  114,438,010.87 91,507,733.38
10,680,000.00 —  26,080,000.00 —
135,259,376.61 97,117,751.76  140,518,010.87 91,507,733.38
(132,903,491.07)  (93,082,730.69) (138,170,111.32) (87,884,933.17)

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

Cash Flows from

Financing Activities
Cash received from

investment by others
Proceeds from borrowings

Other cash received relating

to financing activities
Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash repayments of

debentures

Cash payments for
distribution of dividends
or profits and payments
of interest expenses

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from
financing activities

Effect of Foreign Exchange

Rate Changes on Cash

Net increase in Cash and

Cash Equivalents

Efy: AR¥ T
Unit: RMB
i AfeE BARISH
FEY LEH FEY LEH
The Group Th e Company
Notes 2001 2000 2001 2000
597,000.00 — — —
285,000,000.00 6,000,000.00  285,000,000.00 —
4,100,000.00 — — —
289,697,000.00 6,000,000.00  285,000,000.00 -
70,000,000.00 780,000.00 70,000,000.00 —
48,159,321.95 23,918,074.02 46,482,862.50 22,304,352.44
118,159,321.95 24,698,074.02  116,482,862.50 22,304,352.44
171,537,678.05  (18,698,074.02) 168,517,137.50  (22,304,352.44)
1,069,797.09 (271,238.46) 48,448.21 (105,952.86)
90,027,565.06  (76,370,413.48)  79,874,508.02  (73,263,486.27)
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2001 ANNUAL

Reconciliation of Profit after taxation
to Cash Flows from Operating
Activities

Net Profit for the year

Add: Adjusted retained profit at

the beginning of the period

Provision for bad debt or bad
debt written off

Provision for diminution in value
of long term investments

Provision for diminution in value
of intangible assets

Provision for diminution in value of
inventories

Provision for diminution in value of
fixed assets

Depreciation of fixed assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of deferred expenses

Amortisation of deferred expenses
(less: increase)

Increase in accruals (less: decreased)

Loss on disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long
term assets (less:income)

Financial expenses

Investment loss (less:income)

Contributions from minority interests

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in operating receivables
(less: increase)

Increase in operating payables
(less: decrease)

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

Eff: AR¥ T

Net cash flows from operating
activities

Net increase in Cash and Cash
Equivalents
Cash at the end of the period
Less: Cash and bank balance at
the beginning of the period

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Unit: RMB
A 5N
FEY LEH FEY LEH
The Group Th e Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
64,281,675.46  30,229,274.04 64,862,688.02 30,428,163.67
—  (40,682,902.68) —  (40,682,902.68)
2,889,598.42 2,093,456.68 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
8,333,200.00 — 8,333,200.00 —
3,480,000.00 — — —
1,770,835.05 (6,933,395.93) 1,000,000.00 (6,936,533.00)
—  21,193,986.67 — 21,193,986.67
32,703,102.14  32,082,945.14 28,255,660.30 27,777,198.26
1,006,619.44 643,015.65 425,600.80 —
897,114.86 1,777,882.05 — 1,212,000.00
(704,793.55) 65,913.06 29,789.01 (19,502.93)
(59,335.75) (106,068.93) — —
1,256,282.16 3,247,068.80 808,819.19 2,148,829.95
7,089,524.86 2,190,109.34 6,434,414.29 410,305.30
— — 4,374,895.02 3,163,041.45
(2,268,211.69)  (1,523,079.11) — —
(792,142.11) (124,447,238.18)  25,729,738.86  (119,447,064.62)
(55,329,024.17)  (20,085,309.45)  (50,822,940.27)  (14,646,853.55)
(14,230,864.13)  135,935,972.54  (40,952,831.59) 131,431,083.68
50,323,580.99 35,681,629.69 49,479,033.63 37,031,752.20
217,447,347.74  127,419,782.68  195,614,130.48  115,739,622.46
127,419,782.68  203,790,196.16  115,739,622.46  189,003,108.73
90,027,565.06  (76,370,413.48)  79,874,508.02  (73,263,486.27)

REPORT

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

1.

GENERAL

Beiren Printing Machinery Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is a joint stock limited company established in the People’s
Republic of China by Beiren Group Corporation (“BGC”) as
the sole promoter. The Company was established on 13 July
1993. The Company’s A shares and H shares have been
listed in Shanghai and Hong Kong respectively. The
Company is principally engaged in the development, design,
manufacturing and sales of printing machines, pressing
machines, packing machines and parts and components of
such machines. Other operations include technological
consultancy and technical support services related to the
major operations.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION

Accounting System

The Company prepares its financial statements in
accordance with the “Accounting Standards” and the
“Accounting Regulations for Business Enterprises”.

Financial Year

The Company adopts the calendar year as its financial year
i.e. from 1 January to 31 December .

Reporting Currency

The Company’s books of accounts are maintained in
Renminbi.

Basis of accounting and valuation

Itis in accordance with the accrual concept and valuation is
based on historical cost.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rate quoted by the Peoples’
Bank of China on the last day of the previous month.
Monetary accounts denominated in foreign currencies as at
the end of each month are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rate quoted by the Peoples’ Bank of China. Except
for exchange difference arising from specific foreign currency
loans relating to acquisition or construction of fixed assets
before it is capable of being put in use as planned are
included in the cost of construction in progress , other
exchange differences are dealt with in the profit and loss
account as financial expenses.

Translation of financial statements denominated in
foreign currency

The items of financial statements denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the following exchange rates
for recording: Assets and liabilities are translated into
Renminbi at the market exchange rates at the balance sheet
date; shareholders’ equity are translated at historical rates
of exchange; profit and loss items are translated at average
exchange rate for the year. Prior year figures and brought
forward balances are disclosed in accordance with the last
year’s financial statements. The difference arises from
translation of balance sheet and profit and loss account and
profits distribution using different rates is charged to the
exchange reserve account which is shown in balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of Consolidation

(1) Scope of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and of its
subsidiaries, both domestic and overseas, for the
financial year ended 31 December. A subsidiary is
an enterprise in which the Company holds, directly
or indirectly, more than 50% of the equity share capital
of the investee companies or to which the Company
is able to control the operating activities of the

investee companies through other methods.

(2) Accounting method for consolidation

The principal accounting policies adopted by the
subsidiaries are consistent with the Company.

All'intra - group balances and transactions have been
eliminated on consolidation.

Cash equivalents

In the cash flow statements, cash equivalents represent the
cash and bank balances and short term investments which
are readily convertible to cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Provision for bad debts

(1) Basis of recognition of bad debts

A debtor who is bankrupt and makes repayment
according to legal procedure. After that, the related

account receivable is confirmed as unrecoverable.

A debtor who is dead and there is no estate for
repayment and no obligatory guarantor. The related

account receivable is confirmed as unrecoverable.

A debtor do not make repayment as agreed and there
is obvious indication that the related account

receivable is unrecoverable.

(2) Accounting for loss arising from bad debts

Provision for bad debts is reasonably estimated based
on the Company’s past experience, the financial
position and cash flow of the debtors together with
other relevant information.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at historical cost at acquisition.
Historical cost includes direct materials, direct labour and
direct overheads that have incurred in production or provision
of services plus a proportionate share of indirect expenses.
The inventories of the Company include raw materials, work-

in-progress and finished goods.

The cost of inventories sold is calculated on a weighted
average basis. Consumables are charged to profit and loss
account when they are requisitioned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Provision for diminution in value of inventories

At the end of year, a provision for diminution in value of
inventories will be made when its net realisable value is lower
than its costs. The provision is made at the amount equal to
the excess of the net realisable value of an inventory over
its cost. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling
price less all further costs to completion and costs to be
incurred in selling during the normal course of business
operation.

Long term investments

(2) Long term equity investments

Long term equity investments are stated at cost of

acquisition.

The investee company to which the Company is able
to control, by itself or jointly with other parties, or to
exert significant influence is accounted for using the
equity method; the current year’s investment income
is accounted for on basis of its proportionate share
of profit or loss.

When the cost method is adopted, the amount of
investment income recognised by the invested is
limited to the amount received from the accumulated
net profits which arise from the investee enterprise
has accepted from the invested. The amount of profits
or cash dividends declared to be distributed by the
investee enterprise in excess of the above should be
treated as recovery of investment cost, and reduce
the carrying amount of investments accordingly.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

(2

®3)

Accounting for long term investment in debt

The difference between the cost of long term
investment in debts net of related expenses and
interest receivable and the par value of the debenture
will be the premium or discount of debenture

investment;

Interest income is recognised on its possibility of

recovery.

Provision for diminution in value of investment

Owing to continuous decline in market prices or
change in the operation of investee company, the
recoverable amounts of long term investment is lower
than the book value of the long term investment. The
difference between the recoverable amount and the
book value of the long term investment is stated as
provision for diminution in value of investment. The
recoverable amount of long term investment
represents the highest of the net proceeds from sale
of the long term investment and the net present value
of expected future cash flow arising from the holding
and the disposal upon maturity of the long term
investment.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets include buildings, plant and machinery,

transportation equipment, other production and operating

equipment, utensils and tools with useful lives of over one

year, and non-production and operating equipment with unit

price over Rmb2,000 and useful lives of over two years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

2.

Plant and machinery

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition. Depreciation
is provided to write off the cost of fixed assets over their
estimated useful lives from the following month after they
are put into operations using the straight line method. The
estimated residue value is 3% of its cost. The estimated
useful lives and depreciation rates of the fixed assets are:—

FEFR FHER
Estimated

useful lives (years) Annual rate

40 2.425%

8-14 12.125%-6.929%

Electronic equipment,

furniture & fixture 8 12.125%
EERE Transportation equipment 8 12.125%
Bl & 3 & i {E $ i Provision for diminution in value of fixed assets

BEEEZRIREAEERTKESHE
AR E - ZRE S RENREE
ENERE - A REEEEREER
BEEEAWDSHAREEREEEN
HEFERBENRZEENIFEER
MERFRERKNEEPEENE
FARRBESRENREME 2 FHR
2& e

Fixed assets are stated at the lower of the book value and
the recoverable amount. The difference between the
recoverable amount and the book value is stated as provision
for diminution in value of fixed assets. The recoverable
amount of fixed assets represents the higher of the net
proceeds from sale of fixed assets and the net present value
of expected future cash flow arising from the continuing use
of the assets and the disposal of the assets upon the end of
their estimated useful lives.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Construction in progress
Construction in progress is stated at cost of construction.

The cost of construction includes all construction,
expenditure, borrowing costs of specific loans directly related
to the construction and eligible for capitalisation and other
relevant expenses attributable to such projects. The cost of
construction in progress will be transferred to fixed assets
when the construction in progress is capable of being put in
use as planned. No depreciation is provided on construction
in progress.

Provision for diminution in value of construction in progress
is made when construction has been suspended for a long
period of time and the works will not be recommence within
next three years; the project is obsolete either in its physical
conditions or technology and has great uncertainty in its
economic benefit to the enterprise; or other evidence
indicates that there is diminution in value.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition and are

amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful
lives.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Provision for diminution in value of intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at the lower of the book value
and the recoverable amount. At the end of the year, the
intangible assets are reviewed to assess their ability of
bringing future economic benefits to the enterprise. The
difference between the recoverable amount and the book
value is stated as provision for diminution in value of
intangible assets. The recoverable amount of intangible
assets represents the higher of the net proceeds from sale
of intangible asses and the net present value of expected
future cash flow arising from the continuing use of the assets
and the disposal of the assets upon the end of their estimated
useful lives.

Pre-operating expenses

Pre-operating expenses are charged to the profit and loss
account in the month when production and operation

commence.

Long term deferred expenses

Long term deferred expenses are stated at cost incurred or
at revalued amount when contributed by shareholders.

Long term deferred expenses are amortised over their useful

lives on a straight line basis.

When the long term deferred expenses cannot bring any
benefits to the subsequent accounting periods, the remaining
unamortised balance of each expenses are charged to the
profit and loss account for the period.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition

Sales of goods are recognised at the time when the
substantial risks and rewards of ownership of the goods has
been passed to the buyers and the Company no longer
manages or physically controls the goods and the Company
receives the payments or obtains the right to receive
payment.

For service agreements that are commenced and completed
in the same year, service income is recognised when the
service agreements are completed.

Revenue is recognised for use of the company’s assets by
others when economic benefits attributable to the transaction
will flow into the Company and the amount of the revenue

can be measured reliably.

Income tax

Income tax is accounted for using the tax liability method.
Income tax for the year is provided on the assessable income

which is calculated on basis of the accounting profit adjusted
in accordance with the relevant tax laws and regulations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

S TAXATION

Value added tax

It is charged at 17% or 13% of sales and other operating
revenues for output value added tax and after deducting for

input value added tax.

Business tax

5% of the service income.

Income tax

In accordance with the document Cai Shui Zi (1997) No. 38
dated 10 March, 1997 issued by the Ministry of Finance and
State Tax Bureau, income tax is calculated at 15% of the
total assessable income of the Company.

The subsidiaries have adopted the relevant applicable tax

rates.

4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ESTIMATES AND ITS IMPACT

“Accounting Regulations for Business Enterprises”
promulgated by the Ministry of Finance requires the provision
for diminution in value of assets. Accordingly, the Company
carried out a review of fixed assets, construction in progress
and intangible assets during the interim period of 2001.
Provisions for diminution in value of fixed assets, construction
in progress and intangible assets were made when the
recoverable amounts of fixed assets, construction in progress
and intangible assets were lower than their book values due
to continuous decline in market prices, technological
obsolescence, damages and idle for a long period of time.

The Company applied the above changes in accounting
policies retrospectively in accordance with the
Implementation of Accounting Regulations for Business
Enterprises regarding the matter of adaptation (Cai Hui
[2001] No.17):
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ESTIMATES AND ITS IMPACT (CONTINUED)

(2) The accumulated provision for diminution in value of
fixed assets recognised by the Company amounted
to Rmb31,689,714.46 as at 31 December 2001 and
31 December 2000 and Rmb10,495,727.79 as at 31
December 1999.

(2) The accumulated provision for diminution in value of
construction in progress recognised by the Company
amounted to Rmb8,092,659.97 as at 31 December
2001 and 31 December 2000 and Rmb8,092,659.97
as at 31 December 1999.

The above changes in accounting policies (1) reduced the
Company’s retained profit at the beginning of 2001 by
Rmb39,782,374.43; reduced the statutory surplus reserve
and statutory public welfare fund respectively by
Rmb3,978,237.45 as a result of the decrease in the amount
available for allocation to statutory surplus reserve and
statutory public welfare fund in previous year and increased
the retained profit at the beginning of the year by
Rmb7,956,474.90; and resulted in a net decrease of retained
profit at the begining of the year by Rmb31,825,899.53; (2)
reduced the Company’s retained profit at the beginning of
2000 by Rmb18,588,383.76; reduced the statutory surplus
reserve and statutory public welfare fund respectively by
Rmb1,858,838.78 and increased the retained profit at the
begining of 2000 by Rmb3,717,677.56; and resulted in a net
decrease of retained profit at the beginning of 2000 by
Rmb14,870,710.20; and (3) reduced the Company’s net profit
for 2000 by Rmb21,193,986.67 and reduced the statutory
surplus reserve and statutory public welfare fund respectively
by Rmb2,119,398.67.
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Name of the
subsidiaries

EREANRERLT

Beiren Group Transportation
Company

TREASTEORIBHERA T
Beijing Beiren Fuji Printing
Machinery Company Limited

b b A SR DRl R

Beijing Beiren Jing Yan Printing

Machinery Factory

IR AR MEN R E R
Beiren Tai He Printing and
Casting Factory

A AR E SR
Beijing Beiren Printing Machinery
Accessories Factory

AL 0 A f AR
Hebei Beiren Gei Zhi Ji Chang

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

B DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

The Company owns the following subsidiaries:

EfEF

Registered
share capital

AR #3150,000.007T

Rmb3,150,000

% 7£5,100,000.007C
US$5,100,000

AR #4,050,000.007

Rmb4,050,000

A E#4,000,000.007T
Rmb4,000,000

AR#2,000,000.007T
Rmb2,000,000

AE#4,802,600.007T
Rmb4,802,600

Lt §1:4:)
Percentage of
equity held by
the Company

%

100.00

70.00

98.77

62.50

94.65

50.68

EERE

Nature of Business

NARRALEENERAE -
REBOHEEEENES

Transportation of general good for the
Company and other parties outside
the Group

LEORK HEREER
Manufacturing of printing machines and
sale of self-manufactured products

LTEODRBHRESES
DA T A P 5 4 2 3 T AR
Manufacturing of printing
machines and spare parts and
provision of technical

consultancy services

B BEMEGRE
Manufacturing of casting parts
for printing machinery

EN R BE
Manufacturing of parts and
components for printing
machines

mI - HELFBREL
Manufacturing and sale of paper feeder
machines and related accessories
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5. ERFAFRBELR

RAFEEFRRNERERET @ :

FLoRER

Name of the
subsidiaries

BRLANHEHERERLT
Haimen Beiren Printing

Machinery Company Limited

RABRA 7
Sheenlite Limited

TREAPHBOEREEAA  (F1)
Beijing Beiren Yuxin Plastic (notel)
Printing Company Limited

TR AL E DRI 8 (72
AR
Xian Beiren Beifu Printing (note 2)

Machinery Operation and
Sale Company Limited

MIEADREHEEERAA  (F2)
Zhejiang Beiren Printing (note 2)

Machinery Operation and
Sale Company Limited

ML AREREHBRAT (2
Hubei Beiren Printing (note 2)

Machinery Operation and
Sale Company Limited

2001 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001
5. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

The Company owns the following subsidiaries (continued):

EfMEx FREERLE EEEE
Percentage of
Registered  equity held by
share capital  the Company  Nature of Business
%

A K#29,000,000.007T 51.20 4EOREEKEEABEE S
Rmb29,000,000 Manufacturing of printing
machines and related
accessories
B #3.007 100.00 AARTREENRBEBERREDANE
HK$3 Provision of Hong Kong

representative office and
asset custodial service to

the Group
AR#22,430,000.007 68.66 ETIENRI, 55T HhiR, BR
Rmb22,430,000 Printing, Binding, typesetting and

film-setting of books and periodicals

AK#1,500,000.007C 85 ENRIBRTEMHE 2% FAU

BB 5 i 5 5 0 AR A
Rmb1,500,000 Sale, installation and testing of printing
machines and related accessories and

provision of technical consultancy

services
AE#1,500,000.007T 55 HRIBRZRAHEE 2% FAEUAR
MEER B AR R
Rmb1,500,000 Sale, installation and testing of printing

machines and related accessories and

provision of technical consultancy

services.
AR #1,500,000.007T 51 HRIMRSRAHEE 2% AEAUAR
MR TS 5 R AR
Rmb1,500,000 Sale, installation and testing of printing

machines and related accessories and
provision of technical consultancy

Services.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EEFLFIRBELR

5

RAFEEFRARNERERAOT @) -

1

EtREAPHBEONEREED
ARAT ~ L EZBENBA 27 @
BARAR2001F 12827874t
ATEBERYNERSEEA
Ao Hf AFUEESAXH
BEARYEL 5408 T (EEME
RABFER68.66% ; 1t EIBENH
UEFENFEELHEARE
428. 118t ' (hFEMEXRH
19.08% ; BAALEEARY
274.89B 7t ' hEMEARW
12.26% ©

RIEVHSESTA(EAREHE
FTERER A HEE R R ER) (B
B 5 (1996)255] FWER - A
RE=ZRFAREEHLLE &
EWAREEFFBEERZX
HEPIEEZLE  HEWAEZE
EMNFBEEAEANGTES
HAEE R EL0%ET » #k
BEHMAEHRREHIEE -

BRef2fraiiEn ot - L F AFHE
MABHMREHEE -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

B DETA

ILS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED

COMPANIES

The Company owns the following subsidiaries (continued):

notel:

note 2:

Beijing Beiren Yuxin Plastic Printing Company Limited
is a company with limited liability established in
Dongcheng District, Beijing by the Company. Beijing
Plastic Printing Factory and 27 natural persons on 27
December 2001, in which the Company contributed
capital by cash of Rmb1,540,000, representing 68,66%
of the total registered capital, Beijing Plastic Printing
Factory contributed capital by net tangible assets at
valuation of Rmb4,281,100, representing 19.8% of the
registered capital; and the natural persons contributed
capital of Rmb2,748,900, representing 12.26% of the
registered capital.

Pursuant to the requirements of “Reply to the Request
for Classification on the Scope of Preparing Consolidated
Accounts” [Cai Hui Er Zi (1996) No.2] issued by the
Accounting Bureau of the Ministry of Finance, the
financial statements of these three subsidiaries have
not been included in the consolidated accounts as the
ratios of the total assets, sales income and net profit for
the year of these subsidiaries as computed based on
the formulae set out in the document are less than 10%,

Except for the conditions as set out in note 2, the above

subsidiaries have been consolidated
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5

2001

}13”:

ERFLAFIRBELR

REFEEHEQNTNERERAOT ¢

RELRER

Name of the

associated companies

Ninghai Beiren Xinhua Printing  (note)

Joint Stock Company Limited

RN BEVRIHEWE

ARDE

Beijing Beiren Hengtong Printing  (note)

Machinery Operation and Sale
Company Limited

BMEA BEOREHERALE
Guangzhou Beiren Hengtong (note)

Printing Machinery Operation
And Sale Company Limited

BEI AN RIEHE

EREEAT

Liaoning Beiren Printing (note)

Machinery Operation And
Sale Company Limited

BEHEILANRBROBERD
GIEN NG ===
MEBARBRES A ERE
AR2001%F 10811 BEZEEHR
JImEMELIHNBRDERLD
Ao HA AFLUEELTRAH
BEARYEL,068E T (HEFME
ARH943.59% ; 28 B 7 EE EN Rl R
LEMNBYEELHEARE
1,1968 7t ' haxMEXRK
48.82% ; HBARREEARE
186B T  hEMEARW
7.59% o

ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

5. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

Company owns the following associated companies:
#fMEF ARG BEERE
Percentage of
Registered  equity held by
share capital  the Company  Nature of Business
%

BELAFENRRGERL () AR#24,500,000.007T 4359 ETHEAMER  BEEF

Rmb24,500,000 Printing and packing of books and
other materials

AR #2,000,000.007T 45 EIRIBRBREEHE  ZF - FEUAR
MR TS R R
Rmb24,500,000 Sale, installation and testing of printing

machinery and related accessories
and provision of technical consultancy

services
AR #1,500,000.007 30 HEBBEORBMRES  ERRE
Rmb24,500,000 Wholesale and retail of printing machinery

and related accessories and provision
of after-sale services

AEK#700,000.007 49 ENRIBREEMAHEE 2% #HAUR
1R i & 3 A AR A%
Rmb24,500,000 Sale, installation and testing of printing

machinery and related accessories
and provision of technical consultancy

services

Note: Ningxia Beiren Xinhua Printing Joint Stock Company
Limited is a joint stock company with limited liability
established in Yinchuan, Ningxia by five promoters
including the Company, Ningxia Xinhua Printing Factory
and Ningxia Renmin Publishing Company on 11th
October 2001, in which the Company contributed capital
by cash of Rmb10,680,000, representing 43.59% of the
registered capital, Ningxia Xinhua Printing Factory
contributed capital by cash and tangible assets of
Rmb11,960,000, representing 48.82% of the registered
capital; and the remaining shareholders contributed
capital of Rmb1,860,000, representing 7.59% of the
registered capital.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Bt RME NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(RIEBERESEA RS (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
—EFE-F{+-/A=+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2001
5, REFAFRBEENT 5. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES
DAFEEHENTNERBERNOT ¢ Company owns the following associated companies:
NEE L EERRF A TR N T In the Company’s accounts, the results of the investments in
R R B IR U o the above subsidiaries and associated companies are

accounted for using the equity method.

6. AHEe 6. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
FREGHE FHHE
MBS hEZ AR MEEE wEx ARBR
31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Amount in Amount in
foreign Exchange foreign  Exchange
currency rate Rmb currency rate Rmb
bk Cash

AR Renminbi 18,196.39 12,667.07

i Foreign currency

—Hr - Japanese Yen 65,351.96 0.063005 4,117.50
—BT - Hong Kong dollars 2,065.70 1.060600 2,190.88 5,665.20  1.060600 6,008.51
24,504.77 18,675.58
RITER Bank balance

AR Renminbi 212,021,438.71 121,845,788.69

i Foreign currency
—BE - Hong Kong dollars 4,084,871.78 1.060600  4,332,415.01  3,899,839.79  1.060600  4,142,817.72
—%7 - US dollars 36,433.94 8.276600 301,552.79 36,270.39  8.278100 300,249.91
—Hx - Japanese yen 8,649,255.46 0.063005 544,946.34 15,357,913.00  0.072422  1,112,250.78
217,200,352.85 127,401,107.10

HitE® &4  Other cash and bank
balances
AR¥ Renminbi 222,490.12 —

217,447 347.74 127,419,782.68

120



B R R
(REHEEEERRES)
—eE— At —ALEE

7.

2001

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

Bl RE 7. BILLS RECEIVABLE
AR T AR T
31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Rmb Rmb
RITRHESE Bank acceptance notes 9,265,070.28 385,000.00
EARER » DA HEREE D RMIE As at the balance sheet date, the Company’s bills receivable
# o have not been pledged.
T Y5t bR 3R 8. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
FEWIR IR 20T - The aging of accounts receivable is analysed as follows:
EXBEE FOBH
&8 A BIRER B &8 4] BIRER BE
ARET (%) ARET ARET ARET (%) ARET ARET
31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Provision for Provision for
Amount  Ratio Bad Debt Net amount Amount  Ratio Bad Debt Net amount
Rmb (%) Rmb Rmb Rmb (%) Rmb Rmb
TEUA Within 1year  117,226,924.30  88.95 —  117,226,924.30  69,592,438.37 82.95 —  69,592,438.37

122F lyear-2years 4,403,845.55
2Z3F  2year-3years 3,990,584.52
3ELLE Over3years  6,163,074.13

3.34  1,051,386.41
3.03 3189,738.82
468 6,163,074.13

3,352,459.14  8,146,908.53 971 152283268  6,624,075.85
800,845.70  3,449,854.89 411 2,165413.87 1,284,441.02
—  2,713219.24 3.23  2,642,553.00 70,666.24

131,784,428.50

100.00 10,404,199.36

121,380,229.14  83,902,421.03  100.00 6,330,799.55  77,571,621.48

RREEASERBRAOT ¢

MABRREE
AR #T
Total amount of the five

largest accounts receivable

Rmb

23,452,800.00

FE WS B R BR BE o 15 2 B15% B £ R 43

HRRRXARBERAOT :

The five largest accounts receivable are as follows:

165 FE M R 5 48 9 1L £

Percentage of the total value
of the accounts receivable

17.80%

The details of the balance of the accounts receivable due
from shareholders who hold more than 5% of the Company’s

shares are as follows:

AR T AR T

Name of shareholder 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Rmb Rmb

T AEERQF Beiren Group Corporation = 43,888,557.96

ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

9.  OTHER RECEIVABLES
9. HfthFEMR

The aging of other receivables is analysed as follows:

Hib W RIRE DAT AT

EXBE FNiE
&F UA BRER BE &R LA BRER BE
ARET () AR AR AE#T (%) ARET AR
31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Provision for Provision for
Amount  Ratio Bad Debt Net amount Amount  Ratio Bad Debt Net amount
Rmb (%) Rmb Rmb Rmb (%) Rmb Rmb
1EL\A Within Lyear  12,150599.23  46.28 — 1215059923  5169,002.14  18.30 —  5169,002.14
122F lyear-2years 74624977 284 23750158 508,748.19  4,419339.22 1564 49698395  3,922,355.27
223F 2vears-3years 23237029 088  126,185.15 106,185.14  10,949,594.64  38.76 4,354842.18  6,594,752.46
3EMUE Over3years  13,127,688.12  50.00  4,803,425.50 8,324,26262  7,71057528  27.30 220857549  5501,999.79
26,256,907.41 10000 516711223  21,089,795.18 28,248,511.28  100.00 7,060,401.62  21,188,109.66
The five largest other receivables are as follows:
IREERMBEBERAT ¢
RMARRREEN 1 3 fit 7B My o % 48 88 LL 5
AR# T %
Total amount of the five Percentage of the total value
largest other receivables of other receivables
Rmb %

47.16%

Other receivables due from shareholders who hold more than

12,382,984.33

H At B WK BRER P 35 D BI5% B £ R

5% of the Company'’s shares are as follows:

122

PREIRBERAT :
BREE FXizH FmisH
ARETT ARETT
Name of shareholders 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Rmb Rmb
I AKE AT Beiren Group Corporation 370,823.71 =
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

10. PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS

15 0R 4 {6
AR¥ T
Rmb
FHEREE Balance at beginning of the year 13,391,201.17
REGHREE Provision for the year 4,747,808.82
NEEEH Written off during the year (2,567,698.40)
FREREE Balance at end of the year 15,571,311.59

11. PREPAYMENT
FTIRR
The aging of prepayment is analysed as follows:
FESRERIRR DA AT ¢
EXiEH X5} 1]
AR¥R % AR®T %
31.12.2001 31.12.2000

Rmb % Rmb %
1F BN Within 1 year 15,154,963.23 89.87 16,323,169.79 96.02
1ZE 25 1 year - 2 years 1,671,572.30 9.91 519,685.42 3.06
28 3% 2 years - 3 years 23,821.99 0.14 157,461.93 0.92
3FELE Over 3 years 12,834.92 0.08 — —
Total 16,863,192.44 100.00 17,000,317.14 100.00

BNRKERE R BT F5% U LR
DRRR R -

ANNUAL REPORT

The balance of prepayment does not contain any amounts
due from shareholders who hold more than 5% of the

Company’s shares.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Bt ERME NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(RIEBERESEA RS (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
—EFE-F{+-/A=+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2001
12. INVENTORIES AND PROVISION FOR DIMINUTION
12. HFRRBE#EM IN VALUE OF INVENTORIES
FXRE FORE
] B RE R 1] ] BEER 1]
ARE T ARE T ARE T ARE T AR%T AR%T
31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Provision for Provision for
diminution Net diminution Net
Amount in value balance Amount in value balance
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb

R # Raw materials ~ 81,139,550.49  2,059,191.45  79,080,359.04  71,463,255.17  4,860,000.45 66,603,254.72
EEM Work in

progress 204,436,410.72  7,829,648.00 196,606,762.72 242,223,489.51  2,614,648.00 239,608,841.51
ERm Fininshed goods 171,789,870.89  8,347,40459 163,442,466.30 177,316,300.39  8,684,869.00 168,631,431.39
BE¥KR Semifinished

goods 41,158,371.49  1,357,016.68  39,801,354.81 6,857,134.46  1,710,976.49  5,146,157.97
KESER Lowvalue
consumables 53,474.51 — 53,474.51 29,554.47 — 29,554.47

498,577,678.10  19,593,260.72 478,984,417.38 497,889,734.00 17,870,493.94 480,019,240.06

Movement of the provision for diminution in value of

FEREEESBHUT : inventories is as follows:
AR¥T
Rmb
FREE Balance at beginning of the year 17,870,493.94
REFEFTIREE Provision for the year 6,291,726.59
REFHE Written off during the year (4,568,959.81)
FREAEE Balance at end of the year 19,593,260.72
The provision for diminution in value of inventories is based
FEUEEERSEETFEEB VKL on the excess of the cost over the net reliable value of
SRR TSR FENEZHEER - inventories on individual basis.
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13.

14.

2001

FHRA
ma EXB EM8 BERE
AE# T AE# T
Reason for
Type 31.12.2001 31.12.2000 unamortised balance
Rmb Rmb
M ERE 90,356.50 24,904.00 55 HA PR 1] R 45 R
Insurance on assets of enterprises The period of amortisation
has not expired
BRE — 32,500.50 -
Road maintenance
WTIET B 20,306.28 10,712.16 1K PR 18 AR A5 R
Newspapers subscription The period of amortisation
has not expired
TRERE 367,009.02 — 4 85 HA PR 121 AR 45
Moulds and tools The period of amortisation
has not expired
Hith 414,656.28 119,417.87 455 HA PR 18] R 45 R
Others The period of amortisation
has not expired
892,328.08 187,534.53
14. DISPOSAL OF CURRENT ASSETS CLEARANCE
FEEBRDEESRRAX
FXREMN FoeRm
AR# T AR# T
2001 2000
Rmb Rmb
FEEE Stocktake loss — 199,310.66
ANNUAL REPORT BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001
13. DEFERRED EXPENSES
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BB RN
CLEEEE L)

—EE-Ft St —AULFE

15. RE®RSE

HE

REeE
AR%T

Item

Amount of

investment

REORERE
Lont term equity
investment

R Hige
b¥RE

Including: investment
in associated
companies

ROBEERE

Long term
investment

in debts 32,847,000.00

Ed:Ef
RE
Including:
investment
in government
teasury bonds
AtERRE
Other debts

120,000.00

32,727,000.00

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001
15. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

31.12.2000

E3)1 | 33 )
BEER EERE

ARBT AR AR

Provision for Net Addition

diminution book during

in value value the year

Rmb Rmb Rmb

= — 15,470,000.38

— — 12,380,000.38

— 32,847,000.00 —

— 120,000.00 —

— 32,727,000.00 —

FERY
wEeE
AR%T AR%T

Decrease
during  Amount of

theyear  investment
Rmb Rmb

— 15,470,000.38

— 12,380,000.38

(120,000.00) 32,727,000.00

(120,000.00) —

— 32,727,000.00

FXB
B O EERE
ARETR ARETR
31.12.2001
Provision for Net
diminution book
in value value
Rmb Rmb
— 15,470,000.38
— 12,380,000.38

(8,333,200.00) 24,393,800.00

(8,333,200.00) 24,393,800.00

£

Total 32,847,000.00

— 32,847,000.00 15,470,000.38

(120,000.00) 48,197,000.38

(8,333,200.00) 39,863,800.38
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15.

2001

RUERR

RRERE

HtbREREAFLBHBERNOT

HEBLAREE HEELH
Name of investee  Period of
company investment

EELAHEDR  2001%10R11A %
ROERLR 2021%10A11A
Ningxin Beiren Xinhua 11.10.2001 -
Printing Joint Stock ~ 11.10.2021
Company Limited

A BB 2001%3A23HZE
BHEHBRLT 2004537228
Beijing Beiren 23.3.2001 -
Hengtong Printing 22.3.2004

Machinery Operation
And Sale Company

Limited
BMEA BEOR  2001F4829BF
BHERAT 2004545258
Guangzhou Beiren  29.4.2001 -
Hengtong Printing 25.4.2004
Machinery Company
Limited
BELADRKE 2001548230 E
EHEEREMADA  2003F4A13R
Liaoning Beiren 23.4.2001 -
Printing Machinery 13.4.2003
Operation And Sale
ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

15.

wEEH
ARET

Amount of
investment
Rmb

10,680,000.00

900,000.00

450,000.00

343,000.00

Long term equity investment

follows:
Rz Rt HREREQ
b BRE EMEFLE
ARET ARERL ARE T
Amount of Percentage
increase or of the
decrease Accumulated  registered
in equity increase or capital of
during the  decrease the investee
the period amount company
Rmb Rmb Rmb
7,000.38 7,000.38 43.59%
— — 45%
— — 30%
— — 49%

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED

EAE
ARET

Provision
for
diminution
in value
Rmb

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Changes in the equity investment during the year are as

£X
RERE
ARET

Net book
value at
end of
the year
Rmb

10,687,000.38

900,000.00

450,000.00

343,000.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

Company Limited 15. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
15. REER
Long term equity investment (CONTINIED)
REORERE (E)

Charges in the equity investment during the year are as

128

HRERELAFEHBERMT ¢ follows:
FHRR Rit EHERREQ £X
HRBLFERE HEELH HEeH 1] HEE EMESLH REER RERE
ARET ARET ARER ARET ARERL
Amount of Percentage
increase or of the
decrease Accumulated  registered  Provision Net book
in equity increase or capital of for value at
Name of investee  Period of Amount of duringthe  decrease theinvestee diminution end of
company investment investment  the period amount company in value the year
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
BERIEALEDOR  2001%7A3R 1,500,000.00 — — 85% — 1,500,000.00
BHWEHERAT  F2004F7A3H
Xian Beiren Beifu 3.7.2001 -
Printing Machinery ~ 3.7.2004
Operation And Sale
Company Limited
AT ADRIEE  200153A16H % 825,000.00 — — 55% - 825,000.00
EHARLA 2004%3H 16A
Zhejiang Beiren 16.3.2001-
Printing Machinery ~ 16.3.2004
Operation And Sale
Company Limited
ML ARIEE 200153230 F 765,000.00 — — 51% - 765,000.00
EHARLA 2004935 23R
Hubei Beiren Printing 2.3.2001 -
Machinery Operation  2.3.3.2004
And Sale Company
Limited
15,463,000.00 7,000.38 7,000.38 — 15,470,000.38
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15. REESE

RUBEERE

(1) HaERRE

BRERRLFER

Name of

investee Company

REDEERERR
BRAR

South-east Asia Investment
and Development
Company Limited

(2) RUEREREERE

RHEKRE Provision for diminution

®AWRE

Project

2 RS
EitEE
Propety
located
in Macau

BWEZEHE  invalue of long term

investment

2001 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001
15. LONGTERM INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Long term investment in debts

(1) Investment in other debts
HEHR HEFE HBORE i (B 2
AR#T % AR#T
Term of Amount of Ratio of Provision for
investment investment return diminution in value
Rmb % Rmb

=
Note

32,727,000.00
(HK$30,000,000.00) 12-15 8,333,200.00

(2) Provision for diminution in value of long term investment

FHERER
Balance at
beginning
of the year

ARERINE REEDY FRERER
Addition Written back Balance at
during during end of

the year the year the year
(8,333,200.00) — (8,333,200.00)

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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15.

KT (]

-

HtERRERASQAAARE
DEEREBRARAR (RE
DREDNR) BEMREMAD
BHENTE - SRAKRE » 2
RAESREBzA  THEE
- REFESEE WS A
M- -HERNER RIMA
RBEERBITERME - RE
TEEREBRERARNES
BRI zA - RERBAEZM
HENFIE - YERERZIH
ZAISRER TR o

REBZEA  HAEKRERE
N BLHEEEZI SHE
2 YR ENFZETER
B -Zlt ZEBHHEEES
BEERE - HlIL1998F K -
AR BT RRBEERE QTN
2R 278 %18,750,000.007T °
A ARY20,117,692.507T ©

FH1999F Bi%R » AT KRELIRAD
EFNZRZPESIE > 2ER
BZEANEWRZNIEEER
RKOFEEYS BT ERER
FE Wz o

H# ARHEREEREAT
BT PR ERHE) o BB
ZinE REDREQNTERE
20018 A AR ETHEEEERE
MEEFE - MERREEEKR
B A E B R B T R i 5o S AR
BFEN  ETHES B
H o BHEASHERE > REk
REQAFRAEEAERRER
R AT R EEER o

REBAXFTTEERERD T
2001 7H8A H ANEETH
HKE PMEEEEREBE
23,000,000.007¢ @ HE AR
24,400,000.007T @ A AIERE
(CEESFTHEINBRE  EF
REZEEZETREESERER
REEENESE TR TRS
RERBREEHE AR
8,333,200.007T °

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

15.

Note:

Investment in other debts was originally the deposit for
purchase of four flats from South-east Asia Investment
and Development Company Limited (“SEAIDCL”) in
Macau. Pursuant to the contract, the Company does not
hold the title and has the right to receive fixed income
only before the expiration of the contract. The ownership
of title is determined with reference to the execution of
the contract on the date of expiration. Before the
expiration of the contract, South-east Asia Investment
and Development Company Limited shall pay the
corresponding interest as agreed and has the obligation
of refunding the deposit.

On the date of expiration of the contract, the other party
did not perform the contract. Both parties agreed to delay
the refund of the deposit and pay interest at agreed rate.
To date, the nature of the business has changed to
investment in debt. As at 31 December 1998, the
accumulated interest income received by the Company
from SEAIDCL amounted to HK$18,750,000, equivalent
to Rmb20,117,692.50.

From 1999, the Company has not received interest at
the agreed rate accordingly. The Company considered
that it was uncertain to receive the interest income.
Therefore, the interest income was not stated.

The Company and SEAIDCL subsequently entered into
a supplementary agreement. Pursuant to the agreement,
SEAIDCL will complete the procedures for the transfer
of the title of the properties by the end of August 2001.
If the procedures for the transfer of the title cannot be
completed due to the fault of SEAIDCL, the
supplementary agreement will be cancelled and the
original agreement will continue to be effective so that
SEAIDCL must be responsible for payment of the original
investment amount and the outstanding balance of the
returns.

Based on the asset valuation report issued by Yong Li
Hong Valuation Consultancy Company Limited on 8 July
2001, the value of the above properties amounted to
HK$23,000,000, equivalent to Rmb24,400,000. In
accordance with the requirement of “Accounting
Regulations for Business Enterprises”, the Company
made a provision for diminution in value of long term
investment amounting to Rmb8,333,200 based on the
difference between the recoverable amount and the book
value at the end of the year.
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RUAKE

B119994% 20014128310 -
AARREEREBE QAR
B £ %8B T & AR ¥
4,091,800.007% @ A @l Z R
BREBEEBENCKRE £ 2
IR Z=2E A K%54,241,400.007T
A EHEE -

E1E2001F 12831, KRR
BEATEAREZHEEERE
HEZEFE ERHATERKRE
DREATN2002F1 18
KEEEET S —B(H=
£ AFIAEREZREERE
AAEBEENRMARERESZ
REDEEFLNISEZEN
XEREREBREER ° 2002
F2H18  AFHEREIZRE
DEIERFR] T CRHBEESN
HITHRE MERAE  REx
BERAFEH RS B L1E B
MBI A TWIEL L FE - 618
BAfix  YZEBEABHATX
1§ o RBKFTHEEBER
AF2002F1H18HE HEAMNE
EFERE  ZEENERES
##24,000,000.007T * HEA
FE#£25,454,400.007T °

ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

15. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

During the period from 1999 to 31 December 2001, the
accumulated amount recovered by the Company from
SEAIDCL amounted to Rmb4,091,800.00. The difference
between the provision for diminution in value of long term
investment and the accumulated amount recovered
amounting to Rmb4,241,400.00 was accounted for in the
profit and account for the year.

As at 31 December 2001, SEAIDCL has not completed
the procedure for the transfer of the title of properties.
Accordingly, the Company and SEAIDCL entered into
another supplementary agreement on 1 January 2002.
The Company agreed to accept the title of whole flat at
18th Floor, South-east Asia Commercial Centre, South-
east Asia Plaza, Macau held by SEAIDCL as
compensation for the title of the original properties. On
1 February 2002, the Company and SEAIDCL entered
into an agreement for implementation of the undertaking
for sale and purchase contract. Pursuant to the
agreement, SEAIDCL will assist the Company in the
procedure of preparing title deed within 1 month after
signing the agreement and complete the procedure
within 6 months. All expenses relating to the title deed
will be paid by the Company. Based on the asset
valuation report issued by Yong Li Hong Valuation
Consultancy Company Limited on 18 January 2002, the
value of the properties amounted to HK$24,000,000,
equivalent to Rmb25,454,000.00.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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16. BEIERERREHTE

RE
FAERHE
ENR
KERE
TERE
IRBA
RERD

FREFE

Rt &
FAERE
ENR
RELEM
KERD
FRERHE
WEER

ENBE
RELE
KEFD

FRERHE

B8
FAERE

FREFE

Cost

At begining

Reclassification

Additions

Transfer from construction
in progress

Reduction

At end of year

Accumulated depreciation
At beginning
Reclassification

Additions

Reductions

At end of year

Provision for diminution
in value

At beginning

Additions

Reductions

At end of year

Net book values
At beginning of year

At end of year

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

16. FIXED ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED

DEPRECIATION

BT

EEEEM WREE BRARERR
ARET ARET AR#HTT
Funiture,

Plant and fixture and

Buildings machinery equipment
Rmb Rmb RMb
317,991,777.36 398,945,286.28 53,508,459.15
— 3,002,520.88 (2,013,987.88)
2,961,452.53  46,938,693.53  1,951,125.16
3,085,830.36  21,763,238.30 739,458.98

(506,138.77) (11,338,016.44) (2,572,725.30)

B e =13

AR®TT AR
Motor

vehicles Total
Rmb Rmb

28,459,091.81 798,905,514.60
(988,533.00) —
1,817,571.70  53,668,842.92

774,663.09  26,363,190.73
(1,383,170.00) (15,800,050.51)

323,532,921.48 459,311,722.55 51,612,330.11

28,680,523.60 863,137,497.74

75,905,392.56 213,476,463.50 26,742,947.81

—  609,736.80  (372,836.63)
7,291,485.95 31,156,373.99  5501,783.33
(49,348.12) (8,899,784.50) (2,114,291.32)

15,360,636.05 331,485,439.92
(236,900.17) —
2,082,658.53  46,932,301.80
(1,032,420.86) (12,095,844.80)

83,147,530.39 236,342,789.79 29,757,603.19

17,073,973.55 366,321,896.92

— 31,689,714.46 — — 31,689,714.46
— 31,689,714.46 — — 31,689,714.46
242,086,384.80 153,779,108.32 26,765,511.34  13,099,355.76 435,730,360.22
240,385,391.09 191,279,218.30 21,854,726.92  11,606,550.05 465,125,886.36
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SHE)RERBEEEERRA
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ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

16. FIXED ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION (CONTINUED)

Due to adjustment of product mix, certain machinery has
been sealed and no depreciation is provided since then. At
31 December 2001, the net book value of the sealed fixed
asset totalled Rmb28,533,308.83. The Company made a
provision for diminution in value of the sealed fixed asset
amounting to Rmb9,971,871.98.

Besides the above sealed fixed assets, the Company made
a provision for diminution in value of fixed assets, amounting
to Rmb9,971,871.98 based on the difference between the
recoverable amount and the book value in accordance with
“Accounting Regulations for Business Enterprises”.
According to “Implementation of Accounting Regulations for
Business Enterprises” regarding the matter of adaptation
“(Cai Hui [2001] No.17), the Company made prior year
adjustment amounting to Rmb31,689,714.41 in respect of

the above provision for diminution in value.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

17. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
17. #EIE
EMRE FEEME FERINHE FERMEIE EXEBH
ARE T ARE T ARE T ARE T ARE T
Transferred
to fixed assets
Additions upon completion Other
31.12.2000 during the year during the year reduction 31.12.2001
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
REIR Construction in progress 46,667,878.25 118,596,565.26  (26,363,190.73) (2,280,117.30) 136,621,135.48
B EEIR  Less: Provixion for
HE diminution in value of
construction in progress (8,092,659.97) — — —  (8,092,659.97)
38,575,218.28 118,596,565.26  (26,363,190.73) (2,280,117.30) 128,528,475.51
IR%ER HEeH ENRE  FEAN FERINHE FERBEIOB HEER FRRE HeXE IREE
ARET ARET AR AR AR ARET ARBT ARET
3)
Transferred
to fixed
assets upon Provision for
Project name Budget Additions  completion Other  diminution Source
Amount  31.12.2000 during the year during the year  reductions invalue 31122001  of funds Progress
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
(note(3))
REEN 26,000,000.00 15,044,310.56 34,953,819.61 (25,308,095.73) — (6,417,877.71) 18,272,156.73 BE 9%
Equipment Self-
renovation financed
TifEAE  73,060,000.00 1,000,000.00 61,768,520.90 — (2,280,117.30) — 60,488,403.60 BE 8%
Land use Self-
rights financed
BEEl 39,000,000.00 24,769,340.20 11,388,843.76 = = — 36,158,183.96 HE 9%
Moulding Self-
workshop financed
BENE 15,600,000.00 5,161,509.49  9,728,774.99  (381,095.00) — (1,674,782.26) 12,834,407.22 BE 9%
Workshop Self-
improvements financed
RRER 810,000.00  692,718.00  756,606.00  (674,000.00) — —  T75,324.00 BE  96%
Environmental Self-
protection financed

154,470,000.00 46,667,878.25 118,596,565.26 (26,363,190.73) (2,280,117.30)

(8,092,659.97)128,528,475.51
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B rt R R NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(RIEBEFESEARS) (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
—EFE-F{+-/F=+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2001
17. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS(CONTINUED)
17. #EIE
Note:
(1) During the year , there was no interest capitalised.
(1) FFEEREFE - : ) _ .
(2) In accordance with “Accounting Regulations for Business
) BiE(CEetHEYNET Enterprises”, the Company carried out a review of all
AFHERIRERT2ER construction in progress. As at 31 December 2001, the
& 12001128310 EHE cost of construction in progress which is suspended for
é@ﬁﬂﬁﬁ’&fﬁﬁ&iﬁvﬁé a long term and is not expected to restart work in three
EEET %EEIEE’\J%E% years amounted to Rmb8,272,659.97. Accordingly, the
ARHES 272 659.975C » ATE Company made a provision for diminution in value
Uk g %%Eﬁﬁ(‘fllﬁ EE (2 amounting to Rmb8,092,659.97 based on the difference
3 i 42 /JEX }E #E )\ R i between the recoverable amount and the book value and
8.092.659.977C » W3E(T 7B prior year adjustment was made.
A o
18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
18. ELEE
X)) 1] FERME FEHBY EXRBHE
AR®T AR®T AR¥TT AR¥TT
Additions Amortised
31.12.2000 during the year in the year 31.12.2001
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
BREE Intangible assets 31,857,484.83 2,280,117.30  (1,006,619.44) 33,130,982.69
B EFEE  Less: Provision for
HEERE diminution in value
@) of intangible assets
(note(1)) —  (3,480,000.00) —  (3,480,000.00)

31,857,484.83  (1,199,882.70) (1,006,619.44) 29,650,982.69
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Bt ERME NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(RIEBERESEA RS (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
—EFE-F{+-/A=+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2001

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED
18. \WLHRE ( :

B5 Riz&# FOERR
ARETR ARET

Type Original
Amount 31.12.2000
Rmb Rmb

HEEDRE () 4,350,000.00  3,480,000.00
Imported sales network

(note(1))

I#ERESERM 519509013  3,715512.03
Technical knowhow

T RERE (2 25,121,440.00  24,661,972.80
Land use right (note(2))

HERl R
FEAmE FERRE BEER FXBR FR
ARET ARET ARET ARET

Z(2)
Additions Provision for Remaing
during Amortised diminution amortisation
the year in the year in value 31.12.2001 Period
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
(note (2))
— —  (3,480,000.00) — —
— (488,189.88) —  3227,32215 514 F
5-14 years
2,280,117.30 (518,429.56) — 26,423,660.54  42-49 F
42-49 years

34,666,539.13  31,857,484.83

2,280,117.30  (1,006,619.44)  (3,480,000.00) 29,650,982.69

ﬁl_l’:

(1) HEEORBREQAAN—FL
BIRIBRAN - RE(RES
SHHEE) WERERE - ARItE
ERBOWEMBEREN
. E/H\%JL%?UL%‘E‘E%U%E
HENRIERFTFZE -
ﬁt%%’ﬁ#i‘%ﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬂi@ﬁ-
ik

(2 THEREAIFEMEARSLF

EARBANLBERELR
REEXTHRBEER -

BVEEREERZHUT -

Notes:

1) The imported sales network was contributed into a
subsidiary upon its establishment. In accordance with
“Accounting Regulations for Business Enterprises”,
provision for diminution in value on the whole amount of
the intangible asset was made as the sales network was
replaced by other sales networks and the economic
benefit and efficiency of the intangible asset diminished
substantially.

(2) The additions of land use right during the year represent
the cost of acquisition of further land use right by the
Company during the year and the stamp duty paid during
the year.

Changes in the provision for diminution in value of intangible
assets are as follows:

AR

Rmb

FHERER 31.12.2000 —
AREFTIREE Provision for the year 3,480,000.00
REEHEHY Written back during the year —
FREAEE 31.12.2001 3,480,000.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

RHEFHER 19. LONG TERM DEFERRED EXPENSES
BR ENRE FEAME EERBE EXBE FRERER [§:3
AR%T ARET ARET AR%T
Remaining
Addition Amortised amortisation
Type 31.12.2000 during the year in the year 31.12.2001 period Notes
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
THERE 51,108,000.00 = —  51,108,000.00 = il
Land development cost note 1
FERANE 476,170.37 - (476,170.37) - = g2
Product development cost note 2
REAR 107,884.93 = (93,463.77) 14,421.16 1%
Equipment improvement 1 year
BEEBE 1,444,904.75 = (327,480.72)  1,117,424.03 2-4F
Repair to factory 2-4 year
53,136,960.05 — (897,114.86) 52,239,845.19
H1: AATREMG ALt Notel: The land development cost attributable to the Company
BH > A50FRESLETE is amortised over 50 years on the straight line basis.
I & 3 B 3% B R 1 B B B AL The land development cost was contributed at valued
B AFR > BlASEEQF amount into the Company by Beiren Group Corporation
BIFGERA o BIBEILZERTA upon the Company’s reorganisation as a joint stock
RBNHEBHRENESR A Company. Pursuant to the request of Beijing Municipal
AAMBEHRI - R2001F7 Government for overall plan, the Company will move from
B dAKEQBELFRE the existing premises in accordance with the overall plan
FENTEHBRUE  BATL of Beijing municipal. In July 2001, Beiren Group
T NMER 2000F R HFFTH L Corporation has agreed to give compensation to the
R BREEENHEE - Company when the Company moves out from the
existing premises. The compensation will not be less than
the unaudited book value of land development at 31
December 2000.
H it - {£2001FERKRA TR Accordingly, no amortisation has been made by the
BY iR EETEE - Company since 2001.
F2: AFARB(EEESTHE)R Note 2:1n accordance with “Accounting Regulations for Business
FEHRA TR FE AN Enterprises”, the remaining amortisation value of long
P RHSHEAER K term deferred expenses was fully written off to the profit
REBENEREEZIEAE and loss account when the long-term deferred expenses
B o are not useful to subsequent accounting periods.
ANNUAL REPORT BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

20. EHIE®: 20. SHORTTERM LOAN
&R FXREGHE FHeEE
AR T AR #
Type of loan 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Rmb Rmb
ERIETER By guarantee 246,100,000.00 20,000,000.00
EARTER Unsecured

1,000,000.00

247,100,000.00

1,000,000.00

21,000,000.00

2001 F R BEF ARE
235,000,000.005c it A B A R4
HIER - AR%11,100,000tH1L R
RIS BEEREFED FIRMEER -

The balance at end of 2001 includes Rmb20,000,000
guaranteed by Beiren Group Corporation and
Rmb11,100,000 guaranteed by Beijing Printing Group
Company Limited.

21. FEfIIR®R 21. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
- N ] FMerE

&8 EE 5 &8 EE 5
AR¥ T % AR# %

31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Rmb % Rmb %
1FE R Within 1 year 74,233,889.17 71.70 81,255,201.62 100.00
1ZE2%F 1-2 years 29,302,904.63 28.30 — —
103,536,793.80 100.00 81,255,201.62 100.00

A PR R ERFE P R#F A F5% L £ IR

Accounts payable to shareholders who hold more than 5%

PRRARBNEROT : of the share capital of the Company
BREE
AR T ARETT
Name of Shareholder 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Rmb Rmb
It AEE AT Beiren Group Corporation 710,000.00 =
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001
22. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

The balance of receipts in advance does not contain any
amounts due to shareholders who hold more than 5% of the

share capital of the Company.

23. FEFHBRF 23. DIVIDENDS PAYABLE
BEARE FEXRERHE FHEsE
AR# T AR
Name of investor 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Rmb Rmb

EAEEAQF Beiren Group Corporation

BRETHWAREEBER PRC public shares

B EHEIINE IR Hong Kong public shares
24. BEXHRE 24.

EEFMER Income tax

BEH Value added tax

B Business tax

HWEH Urban maintenance and

construction tax

T H Land use tax

EEH Real estate tax

(EPNFRES Individual income tax

2001 ANNUAL REPORT

30,000,000.00
6,000,000.00
12,000,000.00

48,000,000.00

TAXES PAYABLES

FXREEH
ARETT
31.12.2001
Rmb

4,181,083.49
17,322,368.04
27,040.04

1,170,103.77

551,051.93

23,251,647.27

25,000,000.00
5,000,000.00
10,000,000.00

40,000,000.00

FmisH
AR¥T
31.12.2000
Rmb

1,907,857.08
(6,816,487.29)
49,864.99

186,991.50
61,103.00
456,142.82
19,307.69

(4,135,220.21)

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

25. HMMEZH 25. SUNDRY PAYABLES
i3 AR FXE FNH
AR AR
Nature Basis of charges 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Rmb Rmb
HBEEM N 429 40 12 (B B TR A & SRR AT 3% 516,673.47 86,901.78
Educational 3% of value added tax and
surcharge business tax payable
Hith 7,160.79 —
Others
523,834.26 86,901.78
26. HERRR 26. OTHER PAYABLES

Hitb N FIRE DATAT

The aging of other payables is analysed as follows:

FXRERE Fwmeae

&8 :4:7) &8 :4: ]
AR % AR T %

31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Rmb % Rmb %
1F LA Within lyear 22,515,409.89 20.40 139,867,613.36 91.21
1826 1 year - 2 years 84,638,545.89 76.69 6,508,409.98 4.25
28 3F 2 years - 3 years 1,538,050.63 1.40 2,230,974.95 1.45
3FEM L Over 3 years 1,668,412.89 1.51 4,742,644.00 3.09
110,360,419.30 100.00 153,349,642.29 100.00

HMBARERE T RIFQF5%U £
RADBREFENBERAT

The balance of other payable due to shareholders who hold

more than 5% of the share capital of the Company

140

BREE FXiREE )
AR# T AE#H T

Name of Shareholders 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Rmb Rmb

EtAKERF

Beiren Group Corporation

78,266,627.28

126,754,049.26



B R R
(REHEEEERRES)
—eE— At —ALEE

26.

27.

2001

H fih FE £ X

AEE QT @ AEEQ TR AFUREE
1k A S B2 T 56 Y EN R 4 4nl R (B =R L
FT AR ®548,487,421.987T ' B E
2001F 12831 I A AR AE
BN E ARYT8,266,627.28 T °

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001
26. OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Company had payments of
Rmb48,487,421.98 to Beiren Group Corporation in respect
of the acquisition of assets of Beijing No. 4 Plant. As at 31
December 2001, the balance of payables due from the
Company to Beiren Group Corporation amounted to
Rmb78,266,627.28.

REHER 27. LONG TERM LOANS
EREA FEXH OB AR FHE HBREHS
AR¥ET AKX %
Interest rate
Name of lender 31.12.2001 31.12.2000 Period of loans per annum  Terms of loans
Rmb Rmb %
HE TRER1T 4,700,000.00 — 2000F4H28HZ 6.03 ERARBE
2004F 48 28R BEEE
China Industrial and 28.4.2000 - Guaranteed and used for
Commercial Bank 28.4.2004 acquisition of fixed
assets
t B TR 3R1T 11,260,000.00 — 1997%12H15R % 6.03 ERANBE
2002 8H 18H EORE
China Industrial and 15.12.1997 - Guaranteed and used for
Commerical Bank 18.8.2002 acquisition of fixed
assets
H B TR 3R1T 2,490,000.00 — 1999%9R27HZE 6.21 ERANBE
200198 27H EORE
China Industrial and 27.9.1999 - Guaranteed and used for
Commercial Bank 27.9.2001 acquisition of imported
fixed assets
18,450,000.00 —
H— ERE (16,750,000.00) =
RHEE
Less: Amounts repayable
within one year
—FREENRE 1,700,000.00 —
—FRREERERNNT:
Types of loans repayable
within one year:
ERER
Guaranteed loans 16,750,000.00 —

ANNUAL REPORT
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27.

28.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

REE % 27.  LONG TERM LOANS (CONTINUED)
R HIE X A R #18,450,000.007T % The long term loans of Rmb18,450,000.00 are borrowed by
AEINF AR LTI A PEFBENFR Beijing Beiren Yuxin Plastic Printing Company Limited which
EEARNER - BILROBEER are guaranteed by Beijing Printing Group Company Limited.
PREME D ARMEIER -
RIBEMIEES @ ZERRA LB K As mentioned in note 5, the loan was originally borrowed by
B A EBEKMN2001F12A Beijing Plastic Printing Factory and was included as part of
27T FEEHEE AL TIANIH the net tangible assets contributed by Beijing Plastic Printing
BENEREMEAF - AR EAEH Factory on 27 December 2001 as capital of Beijing Beiren
WIERHATE - Xinhua Plastic Printing Company Limited. The Company is
in negotiation to extend the repayment period.
BIHE R 28. SPECIFIC PAYABLES
FXRH 0]
31.12.2001 31.12.2000
AR¥ T AR¥ T
Rmb Rmb
TEENEGEEE Subsidy to funds for rural co-operation
HEES production associations 200,000.00 —
MR AR A = T K B (& B IR ST T S B In accordance with the document Jing Xing Cai Nong [2001]

[2001] 605 » KR IEHE I BT
B raAW—FLAARM
200,000.00Tt AR X EENEGEEE
HBES HREM-

No. 60 issued by the Ministry of Finance of Daxing District
in Beijing, the funds allocated by the Finance Bureau of Yin
Hai Town, Daxing District to a subsidiary of the Company
amounting to Rmb200,000 will only be used as subsidy to
rural co-operation production associations and specific funds
are used for specific purposes.



FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Bt ERME NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(RIEBEFESEARS) (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
—EFE-F{+-/F=+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2001
29. EERMMEIE 29. DEFERRED TAX CREDIT
FEXREMGEH
AR
31.12.2001 & 31.12.2000
Rmb
EER R E IR Deferred tax credit 242,941.38

RIBMBEEERE @ SR TUER In accordance with the relevant regulations issued by the
SEEHMNRE  REBEEQANERE Ministry of Finance, the future tax payable in respect of the
RAHREEENEEERRERZ T excess of fair values over the book values of non-cash assets
BHRENELEBREHE o used for the purpose of investments is transferred to deferred
tax credit.
30. B&&F 30. SHARE CAPITAL
FARREDNEARE (R)
31.12.2001 & 31.12.2000
Share
— > ERRBRMG A. Not yet listed
1. BERARMG-BBEEAR 1. Promoter’s legal person shares 250,000,000.00
HARRBRMOES State-owned legal person shares 250,000,000.00
= - ERER®H B. Listed
1. BEALEMARBERBR 1. PRC public shares 50,000,000.00
2. EILETHER 2. Hong Kong public shares 100,000,000.00
RBERGDES Sub-total 150,000,000.00
=~ RIDEH C. Total number of shares 400,000,000.00

RO EREEAEARKLT o The nominal value of the above share capital is Rmb1 per share.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

31. BEFLW 31. CAPITAL RESERVE
FERREMERR
AR T
31.12.2001 & 31.12.2000
Rmb
R AR E Share Premium 398,134,633.19

WIREENREREEM Capital reserve on shares in investee companies 1,376,667.85

399,511,301.04

32. EBBROW 32. SURPLUS RESERVE
EBE T®= EE
BRROKRE BRARS "E& A%
ARETT AR# T AR# T AR# T
Statutory  Discretionary Statutory
Surplus surplus public welfare
reserve reserve fund Total
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
FHE&%  Balance at beginning
of year 45,503,186.65 42,979,710.17 39,850,838.07 128,333,734.89
FHtR%  Prior year adjustment
FE (GF) (note) (3,978,237.45) —  (3,978,237.45) (7,956,474.90)
FHEEEH  Opening balance
53 restated 41,524,949.20 42,979,710.17 35,872,600.62 120,377,259.99
ARERIME  Additions 6,486,268.80 —  6,486,268.80 12,972,537.60
FREREE Balance at end of year 48,011,218.00 42,979,710.17 42,358,869.42 133,349,797.59

i EMEARETBERANE
STNEE  HUAFEEXRER
BRABTNEE A mSIEH

e

Note: Due to changes in accounting policies and accounting
estimates as mentioned in note 4, the statutory surplus
reserve and statutory public welfare fund are adjusted

accordingly.
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33. XRHEFBE 33. RETAINED PROFITS
HE SE LB &8
ARE T
Item Appropriation Ratio Amount
Rmb

RAEF AR D B
Retained profit brought foward before adjustment
me FHORDENBHER ()
Add:  Prior year adjustment to retained profit
brought forward (Note 1)
HBEFAARDEFE
Retained profits brought forward restated
me AEFERH
Add: Net profits for the year
B REEERBRAE
Less: Transfer to statutory surplus reserve
REGEEAKS (32
Transfer to statutory public welfare
fund (Note 2)

e EAEERRF (2)

Add: Dividends payable for ordinary
shares (Note 2)

ERKRDEAN

Retained profits carried forward

1 EME4ATAETRREEmE
FRNRD B BEELRE -

a2 1 2001 REUEE 2 & K E 4

RFABIBREAREERRAE
HEAE ©

2001 ANNUAL REPORT

46,779,708.22

(31,825,899.53)

14,953,808.69

64,281,675.46

BN AR FEFEL10% (6,486,268.80)
10% net profits of the Company in 2001
BN AR FFEIL10% (6,486,268.80)

10% net profits of the Company in 2001
(48,000,000.00)

BBEEEE2001FENBIRAR -
BROAARY0.127T (BH)

According to the profit distribution of the
Board of Directors for 2001, payment of
dividend of Rmb0.12 per share

(inclusive of tax)

18,262,946.55

Note 1: Due to change in accounting policy as stated in note 4,
the retained profit brought forward is adjusted.

Note 2: The transfer to statutory public welfare fund and the
profit distribution proposal for 2001 are subject to the
approval by shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

34. INCOME FROM MAJOR OPERATIONS

A 85 Local sales
ENHESH &£ A Sales of printing machines
5% 4K EN il 44 Sheet-fed offset printing machines
75 12 4 ED i 44 Web-fed offset printing machines
8 JER Pressing machines
RIEH Form printing machines
BEmEGEE Sale of spare parts
IheH Export sales
ENHE 85 & WA Sale of printing machines
MERERMERARE

Sales revenue from the five largest customers

76,177,863.25

EERB
ARETT
2001

Rmb

461,240,361.05
162,579,187.50
1,958,119.66
38,593,162.38

664,370,830.59
32,994,516.35

1,711,028.63

699,076,375.57

LERB
ARETT
2000

Rmb

348,931,088.00
16,960,300.00
209,400.00
31,257,330.00

397,358,118.00
44,304,728.94

393,162.00

442,056,008.94

E2EBEWA LA

ARET

Percentage of total sales revenue

Rmb

10.90%
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

35. OPERATING COST

FERMH LERMH
AR T AR T
2001 2000
Rmb Rmb
A 8 Local sales
EN 85 & B 7S Cost of printing machines sold

2 o AR ED Jil Sheet-fed offset printing machines 309,642,680.31 227,230,389.00
5 131 45 EN il 44 Web-fed offset printing machines 124,465,188.36 13,468,930.00
8% JER Pressing machines 3,617,823.94 274,202.00
RIEH Form printing machines 30,358,640.27 24,561,920.00
468,084,332.88 265,535,441.00
B miESRA Cost of spare parts sold 17,992,188.65 26,420,456.44
SheH Export sales
EI 4 85 € B 7 Cost of printing machines sold 1,078,075.14 331,701.00
487,154,596.67 292,287,598.44
36. EEXBME&RMM 36. SALES TAX AND SURCHARGE
WAERE neE nE
Item of revenue Type of tax Tax rate
£ 55 BN Jml 446 A8k 0 AE A 5 18 B ERBEHME EHRAI5-7%
Sales of printing machinery and City Construction Tax 5-7% on value-added tax and
the related accessories business tax paid
EEB FERL UL A HI5%
Business Tax 5% on taxable income
HEEM M ERBEHRMEEHRN3%
Educational surcharge 3% on value-added tax and
business tax paid
2001 ANNUAL REPORT BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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37. M¥BHEA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

37. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

38.

39.

FEZH
o RE WA
EREX
B W
H

RRk R

REORERERX

BESEEI WS

BERMEA

RE

Item

EEEEBEFWE

RWA
Hft

TFERH LFERH

AR®TT AR®TT

2001 2000

Rmb Rmb

Interest expenses 8,159,321.95 2,514,774.02
Less: Interest income 2,146,518.15 4,504,267.48
Exchange loss 844,595.06 481,795.56
Less: Exchange income 1,905,566.17 138,214.98
Others 86,380.37 63,457.32
5,038,213.06 (1,582,455.56)

38. INVESTMENT INCOME
FERB LTERet®
AR®T AR®T
2001 2000
Rmb Rmb
Loss on provision for diminution in
value of long term investments (4,241,400.00) —
Income recognised using equity
method 7,000.38 —
(4,234,399.62) —
39. INVESTMENT INCOME
TERH LTERH
AR®TT AR®TT
2001 2000
Rmb Rmb
Net income from disposal of
fixed assets 974,853.57 39,289.39
Penalty income 21,241.30 1,980.00
Others 233,181.00 53,442.66
1,229,275.87 94,712.05
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

40. NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

Net loss on disposal of fixed assets

EFERB
AR® T
2001

Rmb

2,231,153.73

Loss on provision for diminution in

value of fixed assets

Loss on physical stock taking

Penalty expenses
Others

199,310.66
32,759.37
347,425.80

2,810,649.56

41. INCOME TAX

Income tax of the Company
Income tax of subsidiaries

REPORT

FERB
AR® T
2001
Rmb

13,577,426.55
160,788.01

13,738,214.56

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED

LERB
AR% T
2000

Rmb

2,826,152.67

21,193,986.67
10,050.00
359,607.28

24,389,796.62

LERHB
AR
2000

Rmb

8,622,116.34
24,821.51

8,646,937.85
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42, EFMEMEEEFTHERHORA 42. OTHER CASH PAID RELATING TO OPERATING
& ACTIVITIES
&8
AR¥T
Amount
Rmb
REHERES X H Agency commission paid 11,047,023.56
THfEAESR W Payment for land use right 2,461,892.80
EEFEAEXH Payment for trademark fee 5,776,522.85
Bt E Audit fee 2,080,000.00
ZRFARE Installation and testing fee 6,761,093.38
1BIEE Reparis and manatanence 5,122,975.28
BEEEERZRE Advertising, promotion and exhibition 3,216,880.24
EfFE Storage fee 885,762.11
BB Transportation fee 1,913,407.67
fiff 3% Ed Y 2% Reserach and development 10,809,334.20

Hih Others 28,055,670.33

78,130,562.42
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2001

BRBATHEXXHER

(1) FEEHREHRBS

HAFRE
Relations with

ABHEE
Name of

related party the company

For the year ended 31 December 2001
43.

M
Place of

registration

TAEERT BRERR TR HGE

Beiren Group Holding Beijing Chaoyang
Corporation Company District

R AH T2H tRTHEE
EHNA

Bejiing Beiren Subsidiary Beijing Chaoyang
Printing Machinery District
Transportation

Company

EZEAELAR  FAF tRTEEE
BRAERLR

Beijing Beiren Fuji  Subsidiary Beijing Chaoyang
Printing Machinery District
Company Limited

ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

1)

relationship
MBARRE EERRA
Nature of Legal

establishement

ERMAH

State-owned
Company

ERAEHE

Rt &

Co-operation
joint venture of
state-owned
enterprises and
joint stock
Company

PHEE
Sino-foreign

equity joint
venture

representative

KRZ

Zhu Wuan

ik

Zhao Jinghong

RHE

Zhang Zhiyuan

Related parties that have controlling

TEER
Main
Business

BENHEREM - BREH -
BARZIERAES  RWHE
RiEH - R CEEFAELX
EERENELOER  RERH
HR#RIEREAERRRIR
Manufacturing and sales of
printing machines,packing machines,
machine beds and parts and
components of such machines;
technology development and
technical consultancy, provision of
services, provision of import
sevices related to the production of
enterprises within the Group and
sub-contracting work of printing
machinery project in overseas
and international tendering project
within the PRC.

DERAIEEENERAT -
ENIHEEEENER
Transportation for general goods of
the Company and other parties
outside the Goup

SEORK HEREER

Manufacture of printing machines and

sale of self-produced products

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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43.

BRBATHEXXHER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001
43.

(1) FEZHREHRBES (W)

LobEt

Name of

HARRE
Relations with

related party the company

I AREEEDR)
B

Beijing Beiren

TAH

Subsidiary
Jing Yan Printing

Machinery Factory

LA A KA ENH
RER

Beiren Tai He

74

Subsidiary
Printing and
Casting Factory

=S NI 1
i

Beijing Beiren Subsidiary

Printing Machinery

Accessories Factory

MEEAGERE  F2F
Hebei Beiren Gei
Zhi Ji Chang

Subsidiary

BFLADRER FAF

BREEAH
Haimen Beiren Subsidiary
Printing Machinery

Company Limited

M
Place of

registration
ERHEES
Yan Xing

County,
Beijing

ERHARH

Da Xing County,
Beijing

TR PR
Pinggu County,

Beijing

LB RRE
Hebei Province

IHEBMAD

Haimen, Jiangsu
Province

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS(CONTINUED)

(1) Related parties that have controlling
relationship (CONTINUED)

ABARRE
Nature of
establishement

RoHEER

FrEHgE

Co-operative
joint venture
of joint stock
company and
state-owned

enterprise

ERmAEHE

DSl

Co-operatiive
joint venture
of joint stock
company and
state-owned

enterprise

ERMAH

State-owned

enterprise

Bg

Joint venture

BREFLT

all

Limited

Company

EERRA
Legal

representative

RE

Zhang Jinzhuo

FE

Li Renhua

REE

Zhang Zhiyuan

ERZ
Lu Changan

REE

Zhang Zhiyuan

TEER
Main
Business

REDRRAR AR ARARE
B35 1 2 8 £ 1 PR A

Manufacture of printing machines and
related accessories and provision of

technical consultancy seminar

B BEEGRE

Manufacture of casting parts and
machinery spare parts

BRREERE  HE  BERK
UEELYS

Manufacture and sale of parts and
components for printing machines;
repair and provision of technical

consultancy services

RERRET
Paper-feeding machines and related

accessories

(B3 I - $HE) VIR

DR EMAEN SRS MRS
Manufacture of printing machines and
related accessories, manaufacture,
sub-contracting or sales of spare parts

of machinery
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43.

2001

(1) FEEGREHRBS (W)

WEAER
Name of
related party

RABRLH

Sheenlife Limtied

HRIEAPHBED
BREMELA

Beijing Beiren Yuxin
Plastic Printing
Company Limited

Azt AL E E
BREHERAF

Xian Beiren Beifu
Printing Machinery
Operation And Sale
Company Limited

T 3b A DRI
EHARLA

Zhejiang Beiren
Printing Machinery
Operation And
Sale Company
Limited

ANNUAL

HAFRE
Relations with

the company

M
Place of

registration

727 B
Subsidiary Hong Kong
TRF EEHRAE
Subsidiary Beijing
Dongcheng
District
FARH REEEZ®
Subsidiary Xian, Shanxi
Province
TRF HTERMD
Subsidiary Hangzhou,
Zhejiang
Province
REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

43. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS(CONTINUED)

(1) Related parties that have controlling
relationship (CONTINUED)

MBARRE EERRA
Nature of Legal

establishement representative

BRERAT

Limited
Company

Limited Zhu Wuan
Company

BERERRT 9F

Limited Liu Jin
Company

Limited Wang Guohua
Company

TEER
Main
Business

ARATREENSRBE

RENAYE

Provision of Hong Kong
representative office and asset

custodial service to the Company

ETER - BE - £7T ROBE
SRR B BIR HHEH -
R H

Printing, Colour coating and binding of
books and periodicals; printing of
trademarks, packing and printing;
typesetting, film setting; provision of
technical consultancy and information

consultancy services

EADRBBREFOHBHE

ZRB  RiEH - BPEI

EmifE - ERBRBEMEA D RIEH
WS

Wholesale and retail of Beiren printing
machines and related accessories;
installation and testing, repairs, training
for customers, product promotion,
after sale service and sale of other
printing equipment

BRI R B HE | IR 25
& BERYE - RlTEW - RITRS
i e HRE R

Sale of printing machinery and related
accessories, installation and testing,
after-sale service, technical
consultancy service and technical
services for Beiren printing machinery

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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43. HRABLTHEXXRFER

(1) HERHARERORBES (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

43. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS(CONTINUED)

(1) Related parties that have controlling
relationship (CONTINUED)

Lyt BARME  EMuE MEARRE  EERRA FERE

Name of Relations with Place of Nature of Legal Main

related party the company  registration establishement representative  Business

MLLADRER  F2F WL ERED ERERRE  IEE EARIREHREFOHBHERE
EHERANF EARDRBBENRRBR - HER

% AP REH KR

Hubei Beiren Subsidiary Wuhan, Limited Wang Guohua ~ Wholesale and retail of Beiren
Printing Machinery Hubei Province Company printing machine and related
Operation And accessories; installation and testing,

Sale Company
Limited

(2) FEZGIRMERB YRR

fRERR AL

)bkt

Name of related party

EtAKERF

repairs, training for customers,
technical consultancy and technical

services for Beiren printing machinery

(2) Changes in the Company’s share capital held
by related parties

EXRENH :4:7]
AREBT %

Closing and
opening balance amount Ratio
Rmb %
25,000 62.50
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43. HRBATHEXRRER

(3) RN R Re) R B M (3) Changes in the registered capital of related
BEXRHEEL parties with controlling relationship
WA R MY FEEMY FEROY EXH
Additions Reductions

Name of related party 31.12.2000 during the year during the year 31.12.2001

TREADEES A7 AK®3,150,000.007 — —  ARM3,150,000.007

Beijing Beiren Printing Machinery Rmb3,150,000.00 Rmb3,150,000.00
Transportation Company

EREAE LR HHERAT %75,100,000.007 — —  %75,100,000.007
Beijing Beiren Fuji Printing Machniery US$5,100,000.00 US$5,100,000.00
Company Limited

I ASGEENR B AR#4,050,000.007 — —  AR#4,050,000.007
Beijing Beiren Jing Yan Printing Rmb4,050,000.00 Rmb4,050,000.00

Machinery Factory
EFRIEAKRFEE FER AK%4,000,000.007T — —  AK#%4,000,000.007
Beiren Tai He Printing and Rmb4,000,000.00 Rmb4,000,000.00
Casting Factory
A AR R AK%2,000,000.007 — —  AK%2,000,000.007C
Beijing Beiren Printing Machinery Rmb2,000,000.00 Rmb2,000,000.00
Accessories Factory
Wik ARG EE AK%4,802,600.007T — —  AR™4,802,600.007
Hebei Beiren Gei Zhi Ji Chang Rmb4,802,600.00 Rmb4,802,600.00
B ADREE ERECLR AR #%2,900,000.007C — —  AR#2,900,000.007
Haimen Beiren Printing Machiner Rmb2,900,000 Rmb2,900,000
Company Limited

RABRL A #3007 — — A%3.007T
Sheenlife Limited HK$3.0 HK$3.00
EREAPHBD BREFLT AR #22,430,000.007T — AR#%22,430,000.007
Beijing Beiren Yuxin Plastic Printing Rmb22,430,000.00 Rmb22,430,000.00

Company Limtied

2001 ANNUAL

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

43. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS(CONTINUED)
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43.

4)

BRBATHEXXHER

(3) TR+ RAR 0 BRBE 75 &) i it

RERHE(E A

mHLER

Name of related party

BRIALEDR BHEHERDT
Xian Beiren Beifu Printing Machinery
Operation And Sale Company LImited

AT AR SHERA T
Zhejiang Beiren Printing Machinery
Operation And Sale Company Limited

ML AR SHERA T
Hubei Beiren Printing Machinery
Operation And Sale Company LImited

FHEERFRERORBSMENER

LopE-E

Name of related party

EREEELODT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001
43. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS(CONTINUED)

(3) Changes in the registered capital of related
parties with controlling relationship

(CONTINUED)

3] 1 FERMY
Additions

31.12.2000 during the year

AR #1,500,000.007C
Rmb1,500,000.00

AR #1,500,000.007¢
Rmb1,500,000.00

AR #1,500,000.007¢
Rmb1,500,000.00

FEROY EXH
Reductions

during the year 31.12.2001

—  AK®1500,000.007
Rmb1,500,000.00

—  ARE#¥1,500,000.007
Rmb1,500,000.00

—  ARE#¥1,500,000.007
Rmb1,500,000.00

(4) Related parties that have no controlling relationship

Beijing Yan Long Import and Export Company

tREAKEE
Beiren Hotel

BELARENRROERLD A

Ningxia Beiren Xinhua Printing Joint Stock Company Limited

RN BEORIBREHERLT

Beijing Beiren Hengtong Printing Machinery Operation and Sale Company Limited

BMIA BEREBERDA

Guangzhou Beiren Hengtong Printing Machinery Operation and Sale Company Limited

RELADRIRAERERETAT

Liaoning Beiren Printing Machinery Operation And Sale Company Limited

RELTHRME
Relations with the Company

ERBRRTEBATE

Fellow Subsidiary

ERBRRTELR
Fellow Subsidiary

BenT

Associated Company
NG|
Associated Company
N
Associated Company
AN

Associated Company
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

HEBRAHEXXZZHER 43. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS(CONTINUED)
(5) SEELERKATESRER (5) The Company had the following significant
BETHMTEXRARES : related party transactions with the above
related companies
(a) HERRE (@)  Sales and purchases
2001 B B4R ¢ For the year 2001:
ERERE A E1473 ERtARE
A HALH FELRE EAXEE  BRRHERLF FEAHE
ARET ARET ARET ARETT ARET
Ningxia Beiren
Beijing Yan Long Xinhua Printing
ltem Import and Beiren Group Beiren Joint Stock
Export Company Corporation Hotel ~ Company Limited Total
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
REHEE Sales transacted on
NI behalf of the
Company (note) 1,132,478.63  427,580,898.19 — — 428,713,376.82
HER Sale of printing —  11,845,128.20 - 6,831,880.34 18,677,008.54
T ON machines
HEMBWA  Sale of materials — 112683364  1,611,400.50 - 2,738,234.14
HERSZE  Sale commission paid 3397436 11,013,049.20 = = 11,047,023.56
T#EHEE  Payment for land use
X i right —  2,000,000.00 = = 2,000,000.00
BEEXE  Trademark fee paid — 577652285 - - 5,776,522.85
BEMBZE  Purchase of materials 6,040,041.01 5,219,450.68 = = 11,259,491.69
£ 2001 F£11H20H » AREELA Note: On 20 November 2001, the Company and Beiren Group
SEATET T(ERKLER Corporation entered into an agreement on terminations
HERESRENHZE) » Bit of the domestic sale agency contract . The Company
ARBBEEWHEEEEMR will directly carry out promotion and sale of its products
THEBLASEREEERE and is not required to carry out the sale, market
BIRMHE TS EEMERR promotion and after-sale service for its products in the
% wEEERILAREARXR PRC through the agent of Beiren Group Corporation.
HHERS - The Company is also no required to pay any sales
commission to Beiren Group Corporation.
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43. HRBFTHEXRHER
(5) LERLERABLRESEE
BETUTEARBE S

() :

(a) SHERKE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

43. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS(CONTINUED)

(5) The Company had the following significant
related transactions with the above related

companies (CONTINUED)

(a) Sales and purchases (continued)

2000F 245 ¢ For the year 2000
e R E A
HA HAAE EELTF
AR AR
Beijing Yan long

Import and Beiren Group
Iltem Export Company Corporation
Rmb Rmb

REHEWA Sales transacted on
behalf of the Company 393,162.39 353,772,903.56
SHEMBBA Sale of materials - 2,794,742.00
HEReXH Sale commission paid 11,794.86 9,121,994.74
THFERES H Payment for land use right — 2,000,000.00
BEELH Trademark fee paid — 3,707,493.52
BEMRXZH Purchase of materials — 14,916,000.00
HERRERBEE Repair and maintenance — 62,566.00

20004
kg
AR¥ T

Total
Rmb

354,166,065.95
2,794,742.00
9,133,789.60
2,000,000.00
3,707,493.52
14,916,000.00
62,566.00
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(65) XAFRNRLERBWAFTEXTFE
RETHTEXRBEXS

() -

(b) EREEHEREL

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

43. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS(CONTINUED)

(5) The Company had the following significant
related party transactions with the above
related companies (CONTINUED)

(b) Current accounts with related parties

HHE FRES B8 FXeRE FoeRm
AR#T AE#HT

Item Name of related parties 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Rmb Rmb

FE W R =K It AEB QR (F) — 43,888,557.96

Accounts receivable

R RE

Bills receivable

H b e U TR
Other receivables

Ta YR K

Receipts in advance

P& A IR R

Accounts payable

H AR

Other receivables

Beiren Group Corporation

tEEFEEH O AR ()
Beijing Yan Long Import and
Export Company (note)

655,100.00

44,543,657.96

ETAEELQT (&) 4,400,000.00 =
Beiren Group Corporation (note)
EAEELQF 370,823.71 —
Beiren Group Corporation
tRmIEAKREE 1,820,882.57 —
Beiren Hotel [

2,191,706.28
EREEELEO AT 350,000.00 2,082,280.00
Beijing Yan Long Import and

Export Company

EAEELQF 710,000.00 —
Beiren Group Corporation
FAKEERQE 78,266,627.28 126,754,049.26

Beiren Group Corporation

i REHEERR

44, BEEIB

HEEBERAD  RAULRAFTEHR
ANERRBESE -

2001 ANNUAL REPORT

Note: Consignment sales revenue

44. CONTINGENT EVENTS

As at the balance sheet date, no significant contingent event
needs to be disclosed by the Company

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

45, HXKHEBIR 45, COMMITMENTS
(1) BFEKE (1) Capital commitments
EXY EMH
At the end of the year At beginning of the year
Rmb Rmb
AR% T AR
EENEEREEN Contracted but not
HIMNEREERGE provided for purchase of assets 17,729,400.00 73,460,000.00
(2) HEXRE (2) Lease Commitments

FEEABRAL - ARHN
BT HENCERESN

As at the balance sheet date, irrevocable operating
leases are as follows:

BRT

EXH £k
At the end of the year At beginning of the year
Rmb Rmb
AEMT AEMT

FARHESERENRE Minimum rental payment for

REMNTE : non-cancellable operating leases:
EEAERARELE Within 1 year after the balance sheet date 912,560.00 987,560.00
BESERBARIE In the second year after the balance sheet date 862,560.00 987,560.00
BEEERBAEIE In the third year after the balance sheet date 296,400.00 987,560.00
NREE Subsequent years 1,440,000.00 7,758,160.00
& Total 3,511,520.00 10,720,840.00
46. AEABRH%EE 46. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

1) 2002F 1818 - ARHEREREER
REZREMRAT ((REEEE]) %
AT RS ARREEZRMR
MR ESZREEHERNSERE
HEREIKER BETEE-—EBHEEH
P Q'R:'S°2002%62H818 ' &
FEREREBENSER] TRFEE
BEENHTHR)  WMERE  RE
nEBEEEHRETRLER AHED
DEREZFE > 68 A AT
VYRERHDNAZAT o

RIEK R 1T ERER AR 2 72002
F1H18AHEMNEETERE » &
EEMNEESBY24,000,000.00
ﬁ o

1)

On 1 January 2002, the Company and South-east Asia
Investment and Development Company Limited (“SEAIDCL”)
entered into an agreement. The Company agreed to accept
the title of the whole flat at 18th Floor, South-east Asia
Commercial Centre, South-east Asia Plaza, Macau as
compensation for the original property of Shops P, Q, R, S
on 1st Floor, HengJi Garden. On 1 February 2002, the
Company and SEAIDCL entered into an agreement for
implementation of the undertaking for sale and purchase
contract. Pursuant to the agreement, SEAIDCL will assist
the Company in the procedure of preparing title deed within
1 month after signing the agreement and complete the
procedure within 6 months. All expenses relating to the title
deed will be paid by the Company.

Base on the asset valuation report issued by Gong Li Hong
Valuation Consultancy Company Limited on 18 January
2002, the value of the properties amounted to
HK$24,000,000.
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—F+A=1+—HIFE
EEAFEZA®EFER
2002F 18118 - P& B BUE LABR

B [2002] 35k KR BEAE T & E
RIREEREEATIREEESH
RIEHALE) » BEA I RERAHR
AEISEHRKEEREEAA
([FRED#]) » L2001 11 B 30H &
HER  UAZHEEEREESS
B TR 2001128148 H E#Y
ZFEEF(2001)1208%5E F TR E B MK
1 SRAETIEKBEEERE
FEAF ((RAEIEE])F5/HIBRED
HEEFEE2 348t (HEhEek
BEL1817E L  REMEES24E
J0) BEEE|ELNT o DRAIEEZM
ENHERRFE A [E) B - ARIEPRENME 2 3018
%o EZEPAE > RIEHEKRAS
HERE o 2002F1H17H » 2 EEK
AEIEER L EESE R Z - 2002
F1H22H © AFIEIBREERAES
AEK#60,770,0007T ° ST L E &
FEALLE o PRENEAVEEEAZEER A
R#18x HPQF1E84.2% @ #
BEREEEEATE15.8% ' BEH
AEH B EREESTMEHARN
2002FF1H23H&RF > WHARER
F(2002)0165% B E S © 2002F 1
H248 - BRENEE B A [BRFE L AED
RIEWEREEAT] °

Hfth =R

(1) ABR2001FHAFILETE
85,0008 RAVPEARHLA
BEANELTARBEBER (A
RBRER BREEASAREL
T o

(2) HRBITBENSE  HEH
EEE BT T HERAE -

ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2001

46. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(2) On 11 January 2002, Shanxi Ministry of Finance issued the
document Shan Cai Ban Ci [2002] No. 3 “Reply to the Issues
in respect of the state-owned assets of Shanxi Huanggong
Group Printing Machinery Company Limited” which approved
the acquisition of the whole entity of Shanxi Huanggong
Group Printing Machinery Company Limited (“Shanxi
Printing Machinery”) by the Company. With effective date as
at 30 November 2001 and based on the audit report Xi Hui
Shen Zi (2001) No. 1208 issued by Xian Xigema Certified
Public Accountants Company Limited on 14 December 2002,
the investment in Shangxi Printing Machinery with net asset
value of Rmb23,410,000 (including operating assets of
Rmb18,170,000 and non-operating assets of Rmb5,240,000)
held by Shanxi Huanghe Construction Machinery Group
Company Limited (“Shenxi Huanghe Group”) will be
transferred to the Company. When the Company acquires
the equity interest in Shanxi Printing Machinery, the
Company will be responsible for payment of all liabilities,
employment of all staff and management of all resigned and
retired staff of Shanxi Printing Machinery. On 17 January
2002, the Company and Shanxi Huanghe Group entered
into an asset transfer agreement. On 22 January 2002, the
Company injected capital of Rmb60,770,000 into Shanxi
Printing Machinery. After the completion of the capital
contribution, the registered capital of Shanxi Printing
Machinery amounted to Rmb100,000,000, in which the
Company holds 84.2% equity interest and China Huarong
Asset Management Company holds 15.8% equity interest.
The capital contribution were verified by Xian Xigema
Certified Public Accountants Company Limited on 23
January 2002 and capital veritification report Xi Hui Yan Zi
(2002) No. 016 was issued. On 24 January 2002, Shanxi
Printing Machinery changed its name to Shanxi Beiren
Printing Machinery Company Limited.

47. OTHER MATTERS
(1) The Company applied for the issuance of not more
than 50,000,000 domestically listed Renminbi

denominated ordinary shares (A shares) of Rmb1.00
each in the People’s Republic of China.

(2) The comparative figures have been adjusted due to
the change in accounting policies.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(REFEESHERES)

—EE-Ft St —AULFE

1. 2EMEMNEFESERRR
ENSERFRER

BEHIE

Profit for the period

FEEK  Profit from major
F operations

¥R  Operating profit

A Net Profit

MERIELE  Net profit, net of
=%  extraordinary
Y 3 Rl item

2. 2001%E12 A 31 A EE iR {E 2B

m=x
RE
Item
At
Group
- REEFEET 1339120017
1. Total provision for
bad debts
A
including:
iR 6,330,799.55
Accounts
receivable
AW 706040162
Other
receivables

2001F1R1R
1.1.2001
B4R

Company

11,040,000.00

3,979,598.38

7,060,401.62

Supplementary Information
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

1. RETURNS ON NET ASSETS AND EARNINGS PER
SHARE ON FULLY DILUTED BASIS ANDWEIGHTED
AVERAGE BASIS

By . AR¥TT
Unit: Rmb
PRENRE (%) wika (FT/ik)
2EEE nigF iy 2mME nigFEiy
Returns on net assets (%) Earnings per share
Fully Weighted Fully Weighted
diluted average diluted average
21.77 21.41 0.52 0.52
8.58 8.44 0.20 0.20
6.76 6.65 0.16 0.16
6.90 6.79 0.16 0.16

2. ANALYSIS OF PROVISION FOR DIMINUTION VALUE
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2001

FERm FEED 2001%12A318
Additions Written back
during the year during the year 31.12.2001

&t BAF At BAF &t BAF
Group Company Group Company Group Company
4,747808.82  2,858,157.99 (2,567,698.40)  (2,567,645.99) 15,571,311.59  11,330,512.00
4,142,940.22 2,858,157.99 (69,540.41) (69,488.00) 10,404,199.36  6,768,268.37
604,868.60 — (2,498,157.99)  (2,498157.99)  5167,11223  4,562,243.63
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wrEEHE Supplementary Information
(RIEBEFESEARS) (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
—EFE-F{+-/F=+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2001
2. 20015 12A31H EERK{EE M 2. ANALYSIS OF PROVISION FOR DIMINUTION VALUE
B # = AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2001 (CONTINUED)
mE 2001%1A 18 X £ 33| 2001§12R31H
Additions Written back
Item 1.1.2001 during the year during the year 31.12.2001
&t B8 &t LN &t B8 &t BAR
Group Company Group Company Group Company Group Company
= FERE

EEat 17,870,493.94 1615951745  6291,72659 521500000  (4,568,959.81) (4,215,000.00) 19,593,260.72  17,159,517.45
2. Total provision

for diminution

in value of

inventories

Her:

including:

ERm 4,860,000.45  4,860,000.45 4,191.00 —  (2,805,000.00) (2,805,000.00)  2,059,191.45  2,055,000.45

Finished goods

e 8,684,869.00  8,684,869.00  1,072,535.59 —  (1,410,000.00) (1,410,000.00) 834740459  7,274,869.00

Raw materials

TEm 2,614,64800  2,614,648.00  5215000.00  5,215,000.00 — — 7082964800  7,829,648.00

Work in progress

BRE¥ERE 171097649 = = = (353,959.81) —  1357,016.68 =

Self-produced

work in progress

- REBRERE
EfBA — —  8333,200.00  8,333,200.00 — —  8333,200.00  8,333,200.00
3. Total provision for
diminutiion in
value of long
term investment
Hep:
Including:
RERERE — —  8333,200.00  8,333,200.00 — —  8333,200.00  8,333,200.00
Long term equity
investment
M BEEERE
% 31,689,714.46  31,689,714.46 = = = —  31,689,714.46  31,689,714.46
4, Provision for
diminution in
value of fixed
assets
Hep:
Including:
HERE 31,869,714.46  31,869,714.46 = = = —  31,869,714.46  31,869,714.46
Plant and
machinery
I BREERE
f - —  3,480,000.00 — — —  3,480,000.00 =
5. Provision for
diminution in
value of
intangible assets

A HEEIREA

EfE 8,092,659.97  8,092,659.97 — — — —  8,092,659.97  8,092,659.97
6. Provision for

diminution in

value of

construction

in progress
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(REPESTEARS)
—EE-Ff-H=+—HILFE
HENHREPHBEEHIFEE
30% (&30%) KLk » HitEHE
HEE##ES% (85%) HEEM
RMFE#EETE10% (&§10%) Ll LAY
HESHWMT :

&,

(1)

(2)

®3)

(4)

FERENEMNT71% - TELZ
FAXEHFEAEHER
22,610E T °

EEIR:

FAREFENIZMN233% » £F
REBRE IR REE
R EATE mES
162,357F 75 3K (9 37 % /= b 1B

=+
E

HIMERK

AEHRRAREBEA - B
THRBESHWER - BltiE
HAfE FRAB N o

EEEBUA -

A AR2000%F 118 A 7 W&
1t A B A 7] 4k 52 55 70 N Rl 4%
WH o ZRNEEERASBE
HMIBENHE - 2001 FH BRI
BEKHEEWMAZEARYE
16,258 7T ; A TR 20015
BliE ST RIS HE A RIRITED
SR BRI BRI S & HY
SREBHRIEREERAAR
M4 949E T ©

Supplementary Information

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

ANALYSIS OF ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT WITH CHANGES OF 30% OR ABOVE
AND REPRESENTING 5% OR ABOVE OF TOTAL
ASSETS AT THE BALANCE SHEET DATE OR 10%
OR ABOVE OF THE TOTAL PROFIT FOR THE
PERIOD:

3.

(1)

(2)

®3)

(4)

Monetary fund:

Increased 71% at the end of the period when
compared with the beginning of the period principally
due to the borrowing of a new short term loan in the
sum of Rmb226,100,000

Construction-in-progress:

Increased 223% at the end of the period when
compared with the beginning of the period principally
due to the settlement of the purchase price for the
new plant with an area of 162,357m? situated at street
64, Beijing Economic and Technology Development
Zone during the year.

Short term loan:

The short term loans increased because the
Company expanded its operations during the year and
required more working capital.

Income from principal business

In November 2002, the Company acquired Beijing No.
4 Printing Machinery Factory from Beiren Group
Corporation. The major products of the factory is web-
feed paper plastic printing machines. In 2001, the
sales of web-feed paper plastic printing machines
amounted to Rmb162,580,000. In 2001, the Company
complete the production of five sets of currency notes
printing machines which passed the quality inspection
of the Printing Standard Technology Research
Institute of the People’s Bank of China and generated
sales revenue of Rmb49,490,000.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Supplementary Information

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

3.

ANALYSIS OF

ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENT WITH CHANGES OF 30% OR ABOVE
AND REPRESENTING 5% OR ABOVE OF TOTAL
ASSETS AT THE BALANCE SHEET DATE OR 10%
OR ABOVE OF THE TOTAL PROFIT FOR THE
PERIOD (CONTINUED):

(5)

(6)

(7)

Costs of principal business:

Growth in sales revenue led to a corresponding

increase in costs of principal business during the year.

Administrative expenses:

Increased by 43% for the year when compared with
that of the previous year principally due to the
acquisition of Beijing No.4 Printing Machinery Factory
from Beiren Group Corporation in November 2002
resulting in a rise in administrative expenses for the

year.
Non-current expenses:

Decreased by 88% for the year when compared with
the previous year principally due to the making of

provision for impairment of Rmb21,190,000 for the

previous year.
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HxEH Supplementary Information

(RIEBERESEA RS (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

—EFE-F{+-/A=+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2001

4. FESERNREEETERNE 4. THE EFFECT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
REMBERERE - ARISING FROM THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN PRC

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

2R FeEElER
TER LEH FEH LEH
AR® T AR®F AR®F ARBE T
Net profit Shareholders’ funds
2001 2000 2001 2000
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000
REEETER . As reported under PRC
accounting standards 64,282 30,229 951,126 934,844
EBDRE  Adjustments made to comform
ERRE withHong Kong accounting
standards

1t AKBEIRA Difference in valuation of net
EEMMBZEE assets contributed to the
Company by Beiren Group
Corporation — — (60,198) (60,198)
1L ASERA  Amortisation on net assets
BEMEZ  contributed by Beiren
L3 5 Group Corporation = 1,212 9,090 9,090
RAKEB2LQR Difference in valuation of
BEMEZE capital contribution to

subsidiaries 31 27 (1,773) (1,742)
R EWE  Receipt of option payment
BRAEXS recognised as investment
ANEN revenue accounting standard (4,092) = (24,209) (20,117)

BiE+=A Dividend distribution not
=+—HIE  recognised as at
RERHR 31 December

FE = = 48,000 40,000
BRZEIERE Recognition of staff
ER accommodation expenses — (40,683) — —
BEEEERE Provision for diminution in
%f value of fixed assets (31,690) 21,194 — 31,690
HtEERE  Provision for diminution in
f value of other assets 8,333 — 8,333 —
HEIRRE Provision for diminution in
£ value of construction in
progress (8,093) — — 8,093
Hity Others (358) (576) (174) 122

FBEEE8| © As reported under Hong Kong
accounting standards 28,413 11,403 930,195 941,782
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